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maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
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KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE TRADING ACTIVITIES 
SUB GROUP 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities 
Sub Group held in the Swale 2, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on 
Wednesday, 4 July 2012. 
 
PRESENT: Mr R L H Long, TD, Mr T Prater and Mr C T Wells 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr R F Manning and Mr J D Simmonds 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr A Wood (Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement), 
Mr G Record (Finance and Procurement Officer), Ms N Major (Interim Head of 
Internal Audit), Mr N Jordan (EduKent Manager), Mr P McSweeney (EduKent Officer) 
and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Minutes - 17 May 2010  
(Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2010 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.  
 
2. Protocol relating to Companies in which KCC has an interest  
(Item 4) 
 
(1)  The Finance and Procurement Officer reported that he had been asked to 
review the existing Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest and 
the more detailed accompanying Guidance on Local Authority Companies.  The 
review had established that the Protocol was fit for purpose subject to some minor 
amendments which were contained in the body of the written report. 
 
(2)  RESOLVED that:- 
 

(a) the report be noted for assurance;  
 
(b) the proposed amendments to the Protocol be recommended to 

Governance and Audit Committee; and  
 

(c) the Protocol and Guidance be reviewed bi-annually, unless 
fundamental changes (for example, legislative changes) necessitate a 
review during the intervening period.  

 
3. EduKent  
(Item 5) 
 
(1)  The EduKent Manager provided an update on EduKent’s current position and 
made recommendations on how best to ensure its successful and sustainable 
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development and growth. These included the establishment of an Edukent Board, 
headed by the Corporate Director for Education, Learning and Skills.  
 
(2)  The Sub-Group endorsed the suggestion made by the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement that a Shadow Board should be established in order to 
draw up proposed governance arrangements and a business plan which the Sub-
Group could consider in detail at a later stage.  
 
(3)  RESOLVED that:- 
 

(a) the report and its recommendations be noted; and  
 

(b)  that a further report be submitted at the earliest opportunity setting out 
the proposed governance arrangements and a business plan for the 
Sub-Group’s consideration.    

 
4. KCC Limited Companies - 2011/12 Draft Results (subject to audit)  
(Item 6) 
 
(1)  The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement reported on the draft 
material transactions, information and results in relation to the companies that KCC 
had an interest in. These results were to be included in KCC’s Statement of Accounts 
2011/12.  
 
(2)  In response to questions from the Sub-Group Members, the Corporate 
Director of Finance and procurement confirmed that a report by an independent 
consultant on the County Council’s commercial businesses would be considered by 
the Sub-Group at a meeting to be arranged to take place in September 2012.   
 
(3)  The Sub-Group asked for a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP to be 
presented to its next meeting together with a list of all the LLPs and any Joint 
Arrangements that are Not an Entity (JANEs) that the County Council was involved 
in.   
 
(4)  The Sub-Group asked for a report on dormant Kent Companies.  
 
(5)  RESOLVED that:- 
 

(a) the content of the report be noted for assurance;  
 

(b) the accurate, complete and up-to-date record of all companies in which 
KCC has an interest be noted together with the draft (subject to Audit) 
material transactions, information and results in relation to these 
companies - for inclusion in KCC’s Statement of Accounts 2011-12; and 

 
(c) a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP and on Kent’s dormant 

companies be presented to the next meeting of the Sub-Group together 
with a list of all LLPs and JANEs that the County Council is involved in.  
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5. Trading Activities/Units 2011/12 draft Results (subject to audit)  
(Item 7) 
 
(1)  The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement reported the £392.66m 
trading activity turnover generated across the County Council.  He asked the Sub-
Group to note that information on the actual cost involved in producing the turnover 
figures could not be isolated from core activities without undertaking a prohibitive 
amount of research.  
 
(2)  The Sub-Group asked for future reports on this subject to provide some 
analysis of financial trends; i.e. year-on-year comparative figures. 
 
(3)  RESOLVED that:- 
 

(a) the contents of the report be noted for assurance; and 
 
(b)  the Trading Activity Results for 2011-12 be noted together with  the 

intention to develop a more refined analysis of the costing,  pricing and 

trends of KCC's trading activities for future reports.  

 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

                               (Open access to Minutes) 
 
 

The Sub-Group resolved under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
exclude the public from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 2, 5 and 
7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 
 
 
6. Update on Kent Cultural Trading (oral report)  
(Item 9) 
 
(1)  The Interim Head of Internal Audit reported the ongoing investigation into the 
activities of Kent Cultural Trading Ltd.  She explained that the Sub-Group Members 
needed to be aware that this work was taking place and that a full report on this 
matter would be presented to the Sub-Group and its parent Committee at the earliest 
opportunity.  
 
(2)  RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
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By:  John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support 
  Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement  

To:  Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28 

September 2012 

Subject:  Protocol relating to companies in which KCC has an interest (the ‘Protocol’) 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: Members are invited to approve a small number of proposed amendments 

to the Protocol, following the request at the Governance and Audit Committee meeting on 

26 July 2012 that the Protocol be updated to address specifically anti-fraud and 

corruption policies. 

FOR DECISION 

INTRODUCTION 

1. The proposed amendments to address specifically anti-fraud and corruption policies 

are set down in paragraph 3 below. 

2. An updated version of the Protocol incorporating the proposed amendments is 

enclosed at Appendix 1. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROTOCOL 

3. Paragraph 7 of the Protocol states that ‘The Council shall only become a member or 

director of a company following a decision of the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member 

taken in accordance with the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s 

Constitution’.  It then makes it clear that when seeking such a decision any report to 

the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member shall include statements about a number of 

specific matters.  Sub-paragraph 7(d) concerns ‘what Council policies (if any) are to 

apply to the company’.  It is recommended that an additional sentence is added at the 

end of sub-paragraph 7(d), and that a new sub-paragraph, 7(e), is inserted (as the 

new penultimate sub-paragraph in paragraph 7) so that the Protocol reads:  

‘(d) what Council policies (if any) are to apply to the company.  If no policies 
have been stated in the Member decision and the company directors do not 
formally set their own, the policies adopted should default automatically to 
KCC policies.  Where a company adopts its own policies, assurance must 
be provided that adequate policies and procedures are in place, with 
particular reference to anti-fraud and corruption 
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(e) that appropriate due diligence has been completed which must include an 

evaluation of the background, experience and reputation of the company 

and/or the proposed and existing directors’ 

RECOMMENDATION 

4. Members are invited to approve the proposed amendments to the Protocol set out in 

paragraph 3 above and incorporated in the updated version of the Protocol attached 

at Appendix 1, following the request at the Governance and Audit Committee 

meeting on 26 July 2012 that the Protocol be updated to address specifically anti-

fraud and corruption policies. 

 

 

Guy Record, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012 
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Protocol relating to companies 
in which KCC has an interest 

1. In relation to companies in which the Council has an interest, it is imperative 
that they are set up, managed and run according to rules of good governance 
so that risks are mitigated. This Protocol aims to establish processes and 
provide additional controls to ensure such rules are in place.  

2. Anyone within the Council intending to set up a company should refer to the 
‘Guidance on Local Authority Companies’ document on KNET. A robust 
business case must be provided which gives a cost benefit analysis, considers 
the accounting and tax implications for the Council and identifies any risks to 
the Council. The business case must go through the Governance and Audit 
Committee Trading Activities Sub Group who will examine this and make 
recommendations. In light of the recommendations the relevant Cabinet 
Member shall approve the company’s business case. Where the company is 
intending to exercise the power to trade pursuant to section 95 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, the business case shall contain enough detail to satisfy 
the requirements of this Act and be similar to that required by the Council for 
major capital projects. 

3. This Protocol relates to the following companies: 

(a) in the case of companies with issued share capital, those companies in 
which the Council's interest is more than 1% of the issued share capital, 
where those shares are held other than for solely investment purposes 

(b) in the case of any company without shares, where the Council is a 
member 

(c) any company of whatever sort in which the Council nominates one or 
more directors or itself is (or has the right to be) a company director 

4. In the case of a company formed or controlled by the Council (or where the 
Council has, or can reasonably have, input into the wording of the 
Memorandum and Articles), the following provisions must appear in the 
company's Articles: 

(a) The registered office shall be specified as: Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XQ (care of the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement). 

(b) The Corporate Director (or Managing Director) within whose remit the 
company’s business lies, shall be responsible for nominating a secretary 
for the company from among his/her staff. A register of all company 
secretaries will be maintained. 

(c) Any Member or officer of the Council who is appointed as a director or 
secretary of that company shall not be appointed in their own private 
capacity but shall be appointed as a nominee of the Council, which shall 
have the power to remove and replace such director or secretary as it 
may see fit. 

(d) It shall be the responsibility of the Council’s representative on the board 
to make whatever arrangements may be necessary to ensure the 
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company makes a full annual report of its activities to the Cabinet within 
three months after the end of its financial year.  

(e) No Member or officer of the Council who is appointed as a director or 
secretary of that company (or who represents the Council at any 
meeting of the company or of the board) shall receive any income from 
the company unless the Council's Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement so agrees in writing in advance. If any income is received 
by a Member or officer, it must be documented in the relevant Register 
of Interests and published on the Council’s website. 

5. In respect of any company to which this Protocol applies the following rules 
shall also apply (even if not included in the company’s Articles): 

(a) Any director of the company who is nominated by the Council (and any 
person authorised to represent the Council at a meeting of the company 
or of the board) shall be appointed by the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet 
Member in accordance with the decision making procedures set out in 
the Council’s Constitution. 

(b) Any person authorised to represent the Council at a meeting of the 
company (where the Council is a member of the company) or of the 
board (where the Council is a director of the company) shall follow such 
directions as to the operation of the company as may be determined by 
the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member from time to time in accordance 
with the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

(c) Directors nominated by the Council shall (so far as permitted by law and 
their duties to the company as directors) follow such directions as to the 
operation of the company as may be determined by the Cabinet or 
relevant Cabinet Member from time to time in accordance with the 
decision making procedures set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

(d) Members or officers representing the Council on any board shall only 
take decisions which are in accordance with the company’s articles and 
any Council policies that are to apply to the company. 

(e) Where Members or officers of the Council incur expenses as a result of 
their involvement in the company, this shall be claimed by them from the 
company as the Council's Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement may direct. 

6. In any situation where a Member or officer of the Council (or any member of 
their close family) is (in their private capacity) a member, director or secretary of 
a company of which the Council is also a member or director, or in respect of 
which the Council has the right to nominate one or more directors, then such 
Member or officer shall notify the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement of this in writing as soon as they become aware of the same. 
These should be documented in the relevant Register of Interests or Statement 
of Related Party Transactions, The purpose of this is to prevent the company 
becoming a local authority company without the Council becoming aware of it. 

7. The Council shall only become a member or director of a company following a 
decision of the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member taken in accordance with 
the decision making procedures set out in the Council’s Constitution. When 
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seeking such a decision any report to the Cabinet or relevant Cabinet Member 
shall state: 

(a) the Council’s rights of membership and to nominate directors (or to itself 
become a corporate director) 

(b) the purpose of the company and of the Council's involvement 

(c) the identity of the initial nominated directors and secretary and any 
person who is intended to be authorised to represent the Council at a 
meeting of the company (where the Council is a member of the 
company) or of the board (where the Council is a corporate director of 
the company) 

(d) what Council policies (if any) are to apply to the company.  If no policies 
have been stated in the Member decision and the company directors do 
not formally set their own, the policies adopted should default 
automatically to KCC policies.  Where a company adopts its own 
policies, assurance must be provided that adequate policies and 
procedures are in place, with particular reference to anti-fraud and 
corruption 

(e) that appropriate due diligence has been completed which must include 
an evaluation of the background, experience and reputation of the 
company and/or the proposed and existing directors  

(f)  any other limits the Councils' Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement or Monitoring Officer recommend be placed on the 
activities of the company. 

8. Once the decision process is completed, the company shall be formed and the 
Council Members and officers involved with the company shall ensure (so far as 
it is within their remit) that the relevant policies are applied by the company. 

9. This Protocol shall also apply to companies already in existence and as regards 
such companies: 

(a) a decision dealing with all the relevant matters set out in this Protocol is 
to be taken under the decision making procedures set out in the 
Council’s Constitution by Cabinet or the relevant Cabinet Member as 
soon as reasonably practicable, and 

(b) the Articles to such companies shall (where appropriate and reasonably 
practicable) be amended as soon as possible. 

10. Both as regards companies already in existence and companies yet to be 
formed, all Members and officers of the Council should, from the date of 
adoption of this Protocol, act (so far as is reasonably practicable) as if the 
Articles had already been amended as required by this Protocol, whether or not 
this has in fact happened. 

11. Members and officers of the Council who are running KCC companies must 
pass a resolution of the company to provide Internal Audit with all information 
and explanations required to perform internal audits of the companies from time 
to time.  In addition, they must seek appropriate advice from time to time to 
ensure that: 
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(a) they and the company are operating within the law, specifically where 
they intend to change or expand the business activities of the company 

(b) they are aware of the extent of their potential personal liabilities, 
conflicts of interest and any indemnities or insurance cover provided by 
KCC that may apply to them. 

12. KCC Legal Services and KCC Finance between them have produced ‘Guidance 
on Local Authority Companies’ that covers these issues in detail and will update 
and expand this as necessary from time to time. 

13. In order that Members and officers of the Council can be fully aware at all times 
of the extent of KCC’s interests in local authority companies and their exposure 
to potential legal, financial and reputational risks, the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement shall maintain an accurate, complete and up-to-date 
record of all companies in which KCC has an interest, clearly identifying those 
that are trading. Members and officers of the Council are required to supply 
timely information to the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement so as 
to ensure that these records can be fully and properly maintained. 

14. Pursuant to Part II of the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995, where a 
company is regulated by KCC (i.e. KCC either controls or has serious influence 
over it) then the company must provide any Member of the council who 
requests it such information as that Member reasonably requires for the proper 
discharge of their duties (but not so as to require breach of any law or of any 
obligation to a third party). 

15. Members and officers representing the Council on the board of any company 
will at all times comply as appropriate with the County Council’s Code of 
Member Conduct and the Officers Code of Conduct as set out in the 
Constitution from time to time. 

16. Under Appendix 2 Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution, the Selection and 
Member Services Committee is responsible (inter alia) for “making 
appointments and nominations on behalf of the Council to serve on outside 
bodies (except those needing to be made by the Leader in connection with a 
delegation by him of his functions, the list of those appointments to be agreed 
between the Leader and the Committee from time to time)”.  Where a decision 
to appoint rests with the Leader, then the formal decision of the Cabinet or 
relevant Cabinet Member under paragraph 6 of this Protocol shall act as such 
appointment.  Where the decision rests with the Selection and Member 
Services Committee, then such appointment shall not take effect unless and 
until the Committee has resolved to make such appointment.   

17. Company directors’ duties are codified in Companies Act 2006. There are 
seven specific duties: 
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(a) to act within powers 
(b) to promote the success of the company 
(c) to exercise independent judgement 
(d) to exercise reasonable skill and care 
(e) to avoid conflicts 
(f) not to accept benefits from third parties 
(g) to declare any interest in a proposed transaction 

18. As a matter of general principle, the overriding duty of any director in 
considering an item before the company is to vote in accordance with the 
interests of that company. In the case of a director who is also an elected 
Member, or an officer of KCC, this might give rise to a conflict with the interests 
of KCC. 

19. Directors and company officers are responsible for keeping accounts and 
making relevant returns to the Registrar of Companies, and in addition are 
required to lodge a copy of the Companies House Annual Return (showing 
directors and ownership) with KCC Legal Services and KCC Finance. 

20. Elected Members and council officers are under a specific obligation (under the 
Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995) to report back to the council through 
the Trading sub group on their involvement in outside companies to which they 
have been nominated by KCC. Any changes to companies’ structure should 
also be reported to this group. 

21. Various breaches of obligation can lead to a director having personal liability or 
being disqualified from acting as a director. In particular, failure to declare an 
interest is a criminal offence. 

22. KCC’s insurance arrangements do not provide an indemnity for Members and 
officers involved with outside bodies when they act: 

(a) solely on behalf of an outside body 
(b) outside their delegated powers, i.e. in a decision-making capacity rather 

than as advisors or observers 
(c) outside the authority’s statutory powers 

23. Companies should purchase directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to protect 
their directors and officers against claims of negligence, breach of duty, trust, 
default, etc. Directors should liaise with the company to ensure that such a 
policy of insurance is maintained at all times, and covers the director as much 
as it can. 

24. KCC may exceptionally give a wider indemnity to specific members/officers 
where the council specifically requires that person to become a director for KCC 
business reasons. KCC would insist that such a wider indemnity only dealt with 
anything not covered by the company’s insurance. 

25. More detail on indemnities and insurance can be found in the advice note 
“Members & Officers Indemnity” prepared by the Finance Unit to which 
reference should be made. 

26. There can be a tendency to assume that a new venture requires a new legal 
entity, and that therefore a new project should be commenced in a new 
company. This is not necessarily the case. There are a limited number of 
situations where a limited company might be appropriate. These are: 
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(a) Where there is trading to be carried out under the provisions of section 95 of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  Section 95 provides a specific power to 
trade but the Act says that such trading must be carried out through a 
limited company.  It must be noted that not all trading by KCC is necessarily 
under the provisions of Section 95. There are other cases where trading can 
be carried on under other powers (and where therefore a limited company 
may not be needed). Examples of these other powers are: 

i. Where what is being done is the provision of goods and/or services 
to another public body under the provisions of the Local Authorities 
(Goods and Services) Act 1970, whether a particular organisation 
is a public body for the purposes of that Act is specified in 
regulations. 

ii.  Where what is being done is incidental to the main function that is 
being carried out.  An example of this might be a library 
occasionally selling books as part of a promotion of reading. This 
power will be fairly tightly interpreted. If the main purpose of the 
activity is to raise money that will not be considered incidental to 
the original function.  

iii. Where what is being done is use of surplus capacity. An example 
might be a council landscape service having raised too many plants 
and selling off the surplus to the public.  If the activity requires the 
taking on of additional staff or the procurement of new services or 
equipment then it will almost certainly not come within this 
category.   

(b) Where for some other specific reason it is advised that a limited 
company be formed. Typically these reasons will include the wish to 
take the activity out of the mainstream of KCC activity – either so as to 
encourage external funding or involvement, or to permit employment of 
staff outside KCC’s usual terms and conditions for directly employed 
staff, e.g. Kent Top Temps.  

27. Whatever power is being used, and whether a company is being formed or not, 
care must be taken not to exceed the scope of activity permitted by such 
powers. 

28. More detail on companies generally can be found in the advice note “Local 
Authority Companies”  prepared by the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement and the Director of Governance and Law to which reference 
should be made.  

 

Author’s name and title: 

Date: 
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By:  John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support 
  Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement  

To:  Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28 

September 2012 

Subject:  East Kent Opportunities LLP 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: To provide a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP as requested at the 

Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012.  

FOR ASSURANCE 

INTRODUCTION 

1. At the last meeting of the G&A Trading Activities Sub Group on 4 July 2012, it was 

agreed that a report on East Kent Opportunities LLP be presented at the Sub Group’s 

next meeting, together with a list of all the LLPs and any Joint Arrangements that are 

Not an Entity (JANEs) that the County Council was involved in.   

2. East Kent Opportunities LLP is the only LLP / JANE that the County Council is 

involved in. 

3. A briefing on the East Kent Opportunities (EKO) Accounts was offered to all Members 

by Cath Head. This was undertaken on the 15 May 2012. 

4. This report provides an update on East Kent Opportunities LLP, and its Annual Report 

and Financial Statements for 2011/12 are attached for Members’ review and 

consideration. 

UPDATE ON EAST KENT OPPORTUNITIES 

5. Background - Kent County Council (KCC) and Thanet District Council (TDC) wished to 

bring forward the economic development and regeneration of the sites known as 

Eurokent and Manston Business Park.  A Member Agreement was signed on the 22 

August 2008 and a joint arrangement vehicle was set up, the East Kent Opportunities 

LLP (EKOLLP), which was incorporated on the 4 March 2008.  KCC and TDC have 

50:50 ownership, control and economic participation in the joint arrangement.  KCC 

and TDC contributed 38 acres of land each to EKOLLP.  The land was valued for 

stamp duty land tax (SDLT) at £5.5m (KCC contribution) and £4.5m (TDC 

contribution).  The powers used are the 'well-being powers' provided to local 

authorities in Part I of the Local Government Act 2000.  
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6. The key developments and issues to note during 2011/12 are as follows:  

i. The Manston site has continued to be marketed and there have been several 
expressions of interest.  Due to both the current economic climate and risk 
aversion of the lending banks, at present no initial expressions of interest have 
been converted to a completed sale. 

ii. In recent months the level of interest in the business park has increased and 
EKOLLP has secured a sale of 1 acre of land, subject to planning.  This deal will 
enable significant workforce expansion of a large international manufacturing 
company already based in the area.  

iii. The poor take-up of land sales and subsequent development is a situation which 
is shared by nearly all other Business Parks in the Country/County at present.  
The significant number of high quality industrial and commercial premises 
available on the second hand market, including those at Manston Business Park, 
make the construction of new premises a less viable business decision.  

iv. It is hoped that once the first sale at Manston is completed, whilst a small plot, it 
will act as an incentive to bring renewed interest and demonstrate to the market 
that Manston Business Park is a viable business location. 

v. The Eurokent site is the subject of a major outline mixed use planning application 
which proposes commercial, community and retail space and up to 550 new 
homes. The application was registered in October 2011 and has been the subject 
of extensive negotiations with the Local Planning Authority.   

vi. A range of additional information has been required by the LPA regarding Highway 
matters and natural habitat provisions, and survey information tied to changes to 
the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework has caused delays in the 
determination of the application.  

vii. It is envisaged that the application will be determined in October 2012.  

 

7. East Kent Opportunities LLP’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for 2011/12 

are attached, and the key points can be summarised as follows: 

i. In 2011/12, in the EKOLLP accounts, the net assets of the joint arrangement are 
£10m with an operating loss before members’ remuneration and profit shares 
available for discretionary division among members of £0.40m.  

ii. The accounts were approved at the last EKO Management Committee on 1 

August 2012 and are currently out for signing. 

RECOMMENDATION 

8. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to 

note East Kent Opportunities LLP’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for 

2011/12 (attached).   

 

Cath Head, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012 
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Members' report
For the year ended 31 March 2012

The members present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of East Kent
Opportunities LLP (the LLP) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal activities

The principal object of the LLP is to provide, acquire and develop Manston, KCC Eurokent and TDC Eurokent
and any other properties in Kent the members believe appropriate investments.

Designated Members

Kent County Council and Thanet District Council were designated members of the LLP throughout the period.

Members' capital and interests

Each member's subscription to the capital of the LLP is determined by their share of the profit and is
repayable following retirement from the LLP.

Details of changes in members' capital in the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in the financial
statements.

Members are remunerated from the profits of the LLP and are required to make their own provision for
pensions and other benefits. Profits are allocated and divided between members after finalisation of the
financial statements. Members draw a proportion of their profit shares monthly during the year in which it is
made, with the balance of profits being distributed after the year, subject to the cash requirements of the
business.

Members' responsibilities statement

The members are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law, as applied to LLPs, requires the members to prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law the members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law). Under company law, as applied to LLPs, the members must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the LLP and of the profit or loss of
the LLP for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the members are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the LLP will continue in business.

The members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the entity's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the LLP and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Members' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Auditors

The auditors, Reeves & Co LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The Designated
members will propose a motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the members.

This report was approved by the members on  and signed on their behalf, by:

Kent County Council
Designated member
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2012

        2012         2011
Note         £         £

Turnover 1 85,257 -

Administrative expenses (479,513) (353,344)

Operating loss 2 (394,256) (353,344)

Interest receivable and similar income 101 40

Interest payable and similar charges (6,835) (774)

Loss for the financial year before members' remuneration
and profit shares available for discretionary division
among members  (400,990)  (354,078)

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP
Registered number: OC335231

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 3 10,165,489 10,165,489

Current assets

Debtors 4 5,716,144 5,224,870

Cash at bank 144,076 9,014

5,860,220 5,233,884

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 5 (816,850) (353,838)

Net current assets 5,043,370 4,880,046

Total assets less current liabilities 15,208,859 15,045,535

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 6 (5,247,859) (5,084,535)

Net assets attributable to members  9,961,000  9,961,000

Represented by:

Equity

Members' other interests - Other reserves
classified as equity under FRS 25 9,961,000 9,961,000

 9,961,000  9,961,000

Total members' interests

Amounts due from members (included in
debtors) (5,617,117) (5,216,127)

Members' other interests 9,961,000 9,961,000

7  4,343,883  4,744,873

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to LLPs
subject to the small LLPs regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied by The Limited Liability
Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 and in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the members and were signed on their
behalf on    

Kent County Council Thanet District Council
Designated member Designated member

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form part of these financial statements.

Page 7
Page 21



East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) and
the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting by Limited Liability
Partnerships".

1.2 Turnover

Turnover comprises of grants received which are recognised in the profit and loss account in the
period in which the expenditure towards which they relate is incurred.

1.3 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Land is recorded at its open market value at the date of the last valuation carried out by
professional valuers.

1.4 Members' Participation Rights

Members' participation rights are the rights of a member against the LLP that arise under the
members' agreement (for example, in respect of amounts subscribed or otherwise contributed,
remuneration and profits).

Members' participation rights in the earnings or assets of the LLP are analysed between those that
are, from the LLP's perspective, either a financial liability or equity, in accordance with the FRSSE
(IAS 32) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and UITF abstract 39 Members' shares
in co-operative entities and similar instruments. A members' participation right results in a liability
unless the right to any payment is discretionary on the part of the LLP.

Amounts subscribed or otherwise contributed by members, for example members' capital, are
classed as equity if the LLP has an unconditional right to refuse payment to members. If the LLP
does not have such an unconditional right, such amounts are classified as liabilities.

Where profits are automatically divded as they arise, so the LLP does not have an unconditional
right to refuse payment, the amounts arising that are due to members are in the nature of liabilities.
They are therefore treated as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account in the relevant year. To
the extent that they remain unpaid at the year end, they are shown as liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

Conversely, where profits are divided only after a decision by the LLP or its representative, so that
the LLP has an unconditional right to refuse payment, such profits are classed as an appropriation
of equity rather than as an expense. They are therefore shown as a residual amount available for
discretionary division among members in the Profit and Loss Account and are equity appropriations
in the Balance Sheet.

Other amounts applied to members, for example remuneration paid under an employment contract
and interest on capital balances, are treated in the same way as all other divisions of profits, as
described above, according to whether the LLP has, in each case, an unconditional right to refuse
payment.

All amounts due to members that are classified as liabilities are presented in the Balance Sheet
within 'Loans and other debts due to members' and are charged to the Profit and Loss Account with
'Members' remuneration charged as an expense'. Amounts due to members that are classified as
equity are shown in the Balance Sheet within 'Members' other interests'.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2. Operating loss

The operating loss is stated after charging:

        2012         2011
        £         £

Auditors' remuneration 4,500 6,600

3. Tangible fixed assets

Freehold
property

£

Cost 

At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 10,165,489

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 -

Net book value

At 31 March 2012  10,165,489

At 31 March 2011  10,165,489

The historical cost is based on an independent professional valuation of the land which was carried out
in September 2008 by Savills (L&P) Limited, Chartered Surveyors.

4. Debtors

        2012         2011
        £         £

Other debtors 99,027 8,743
Amounts due from members 5,617,117 5,216,127

 5,716,144  5,224,870
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

5. Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year

        2012         2011
        £         £

Trade creditors 33,157 53,266
Amounts owed to members 619,297 190,000
Social security and other taxes 17,085 -
Other creditors 147,311 110,572

 816,850  353,838

6. Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

        2012         2011
        £         £

Other loans  5,247,859  5,084,535

Included within other loans is £5,247,859 (2011: £5,084,535) due to Kent County Council for
reimbursement of costs associated with a building project.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

7. Reconciliation of members' interests

Members'
capital

(classified as
equity)

Other
reserves

Total
members'

other
interests

Loans and
debts due to

members
less any

amounts due
from

members in
debtors Total

£ £ £ £ £

Members' interests:
balance at 1 April 2010 9,961,000 - 9,961,000 (4,862,049) 5,098,951

Loss for the year
available for
discretionary division
among members - (354,078) (354,078) - (354,078)

Members' interests after
loss for the year 9,961,000 (354,078) 9,606,922 (4,862,049) 4,744,873

Allocated profit for
period - 354,078 354,078 (354,078) -

Members' interests:
balance at 1 April 2011 9,961,000 - 9,961,000 (5,216,127) 4,744,873

Loss for the year
available for
discretionary division
among members - (400,990) (400,990) - (400,990)

Members' interests after
loss for the year 9,961,000 (400,990) 9,560,010 (5,216,127) 4,343,883

Allocated profit for
period - 400,990 400,990 (400,990) -

Members' interests at 31
March 2012  9,961,000  -  9,961,000  (5,617,117)  4,343,883

8. Contingent liabilities

Under the terms of the agreement with KCC, there exists a provision for claims under the Land
Compensation Act. This provision is estimated at £200,000 (2011: £693,223). The Members are of the
opinion that there may be possible future obligations arising from past events but that the occurence of
these obligations will only be confirmed by future events outside of the control of the Members. Thus
the provision is treated as a contingent liability.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

9. Related party transactions

In the opinion of the members there is no controlling party as defined by Financial Reporting Standard
for Smaller Entities.

Included in trade creditors at 31 March 2012 is £26,416 (2011: £38,271) due to Kent County Council for
expenses paid for on behalf of the limited liability partnership.

Also included in creditors due less than one year is an amount of £619,297 (2011: £190,000) due to
Kent County Council and Thanet District Council in respect of short term financing made available to
East Kent Opportunities LLP.
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Detailed trading and profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2012

        2012         2011
Page         £         £

Turnover 14 85,257 -

Less: Overheads

Administration expenses 14 (479,513) (353,344)

Operating loss (394,256) (353,344)

Interest receivable 14 101 40

Interest payable 14 (6,835) (774)

Loss for the year available for discretionary division
among members  (400,990)  (354,078)
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East Kent Opportunities LLP

Schedule to the detailed accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2012

        2012         2011
        £         £

Turnover

Grant income  85,257  -

        2012         2011
        £         £

Administration expenses

Management charges 28,227 13,209
Computer costs 95 93
Advertising and promotion 3,900 -
Legal and professional 183,395 181,828
Auditors' remuneration 4,500 6,600
Accountancy fees 1,951 1,600
Bank charges 148 35
Sundry expenses 767 3,265
Repairs and maintenance 7,950 10,406
Spine road costs 163,323 136,308
Thanet project 85,257 -

 479,513  353,344

        2012         2011
        £         £

Interest receivable

Bank interest receivable  101  40

        2012         2011
        £         £

Interest payable

Other loan interest payable  6,835  774
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By:  John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support 
  Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement  

To:  Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28 

September 2012 

Subject:  KCC’s Dormant Companies 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: To report on KCC’s dormant companies, as requested at the Governance 

and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012.  

FOR ASSURANCE 

INTRODUCTION 

1. At the last meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub 

Group on 4 July 2012, it was agreed that a report on KCC’s dormant companies be 

presented at the Sub Group’s next meeting.  It was recommended that the requisite 

action be taken to dissolve the dormant companies, unless there were found to be 

appropriate reasons for any of them to remain in existence.  

2. KCC’s five dormant companies are as follows: 

- Invicta Services Ltd.  

- Kent Training Centres Ltd.  

- Kentish Fare Ltd. 

- Invicta Innovations Ltd. 

- Kent Access Ltd.  

3. This report provides an update on the progress that has been made in dissolving the 

dormant companies.   

PROCESS FOR DISSOLVING DORMANT COMPANIES  

4. By way of background information, the process for dissolving a dormant company is, 

in outline, as follows:  

i. An application for dissolution under section 1003 of the Companies Act 2006 is 
made by completing and submitting a Form DS1 (Striking off application) for the 
dormant company, together with a £10 fee, to Companies House.  Note: the 
Form DS1 must be signed by the majority of directors. 

Agenda Item 6
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ii. Members of the company (shareholders) must be warned before the application 
is made as they are entitled to object to the company being struck off. 

iii. All organisations and parties who may have an interest in the company's affairs 
should be notified by sending them a copy of the application; examples of such 
parties would be HMRC, employees, and any directors of the company who did 
not sign the Form DS1. 

iv. On receipt of the application for dissolution by Companies House, notice of the 
proposed dissolution is published in the London Gazette to allow any interested 
parties the opportunity to object.  

v. Where there are no reasons to delay, the Registrar strikes the company off the 
register not less than 3 months after the date of the notice. 

vi. The company is dissolved on publication of a further notice stating this in the 
London Gazette. 

PROGRESS TO-DATE 

5. KCC Finance engaged KCC Legal Services to drive the company dissolution process.  

The table below shows the progress made to-date (i.e. as at the time of writing this 

report): 

Company  Current status 

Invicta Services Ltd  Form DS1 lodged (by Commercial Services) with Companies 

House on 3/7/12 

Invicta Innovations Ltd Form DS1 lodged with Companies House on 20/8/12 

Kent Access Ltd  Form DS1 lodged with Companies House on 16/8/12 

Kentish Fare Ltd See Paragraph 6 below 

Kent Training Centres Ltd  Form DS1 lodged with Companies House 16/8/12 

 

Note: With the exception of Kentish Fare Limited (see paragraph 6 below), the 

completion of the remaining steps in the process (i.e. steps iv to vi in paragraph 4 above) 

should result in KCC’s dormant companies being dissolved and struck off the Companies 

House register by the end of November 2012.  Towards the end of November, KCC Legal 

Services will contact Companies House to seek confirmation that the companies have 

been dissolved. 

6. Kentish Fare Limited is the predecessor of Produced in Kent Limited, albeit a 

separately registered company.  Produced in Kent Limited owns the domain name 

“kentishfare.co.uk” and that, together with Kentish Fare Limited, forms the Intellectual 

Property of Produced in Kent Limited.  To protect this Intellectual Property, the 

Directors of Kentish Fare Limited have recommended the company is not dissolved, 

and instead that ownership is transferred to Produced in Kent Limited.  This course of 

action is supported by KCC’s Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement, and the 
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recommendation is to be placed on the agenda ‘For Approval’ at the next board 

meeting of Produced in Kent Limited in October 2012. 

RECOMMENDATION 

7. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to 

note the progress in dissolving KCC's dormant companies.   

 

 

Guy Record, BSS, Finance & Procurement, September 2012 
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By:  John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Support 
  Andy Wood, Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement  

To:  Governance and Audit Committee Trading Activities Sub Group - 28 

September 2012 

Subject:  Statutory Accounts for those companies in which KCC has an interest 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: To present the latest available Statutory Accounts for those companies in 

which KCC has an interest.   

FOR ASSURANCE 

INTRODUCTION 

1. At the G&A Trading Activities Sub Group meeting on 4 July 2012, Members requested 

that they receive copies of the latest available Statutory Accounts for those companies 

in which KCC has an interest at the next Sub Group meeting in September 2012.   

2. For background information, this report provides summaries of the principal activities 

of those companies in which KCC has an interest, as well as the key financial 

highlights from their latest available Statutory Accounts. 

3. Copies of the latest available Audited or Unaudited (if Audited not yet available) 

Statutory Accounts are attached for Members’ review and consideration.  The 2010/11 

Statutory Accounts are provided in cases where the 2011/12 Accounts are not yet 

available. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

4. The table below shows which sets of Statutory Accounts (2010/11 or 2011/12) have 

been received and attached to this report, any relevant comments and brief synopses 

of the companies’ principal activities, together where applicable with their website 

addresses.  
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Background Information 

Company Name Statutory 

Accounts 

Received 

Audited / 

Unaudited  

Comments Principal Activities / Website 

Address 

 2010/11 2011/12    

Association of 

Tourist Attractions 

in Kent Ltd 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

U 

2011/12 

Accounts to be 

prepared in 

December 

2012 

To provide an independent forum 

for the owners of visitor 

attractions in Kent 

Groundwork Kent 

& Medway 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

 

A 

2011/12 

Accounts to be 

prepared in 

October 2012 

To build sustainable communities 

in areas of need through joint 

environmental action 

http://www.groundwork-

km.org.uk/ 

Aylesham & 

District Community 

Workshop Trust 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

 

A 

 To support the regeneration of 

Aylesham 

http://www.ayleshamworkshopstr

ust.org.uk/ 

The Individual 

Learning Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 KCC no longer 

has an interest; 

became an 

independent 

organisation in 

December 

2000 

 

The North Kent 

Architecture Centre 

Ltd 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

A 

2011/12 

Accounts will 

be available in 

November 

2012 

To provide design support, 

bringing the value of good design 

to as many people as possible 

http://architecture-centre.org/ 

Visit Kent Ltd 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

 

A 

 

2011/12 

Accounts will 

be prepared in 

October 2012 

 

To promote, market, advertise 

and develop nationally and 

internationally the Kent tourist 

industry 

http://www.visitkent.co.uk/ 

Locate in Kent Ltd 

 

  

üüüü 

 

 

A 

 To stimulate the local economy 

by  encouraging companies to 

relocate to Kent 

http://www.locateinkent.com/ 
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Company Name 

 

Statutory 

Accounts 

Received 

Audited / 

Unaudited 

Comments Principal Activities / Website 

Address 

 2010/11 2011/12    

Trading Standards 

South East Ltd 

 

 

üüüü 

 

 

 

 

A 

 To provide consumer advice via a 

call centre, and training to trading 

standards professionals 

https://www.tsse.org.uk/default.as

px 

East Kent Spatial 

Development 

Company 

 

  

üüüü 

 

U 

 To promote economic 

development and regeneration 

http://www.eksdc.co.uk/ 

Produced in Kent 

Ltd 

 

  

üüüü 

 

A 

 To increase public awareness of 

produce produced in Kent 

http://www.producedinkent.co.uk/ 

Business Support 

Kent Community 

Interest Company 

 

 

üüüü 

  

A 

2011/12 

Accounts to be 

prepared by the    

end of 

September 

2012 

To improve the competitiveness 

of SMEs through impartial 

delivery of a variety of services, 

and by providing access to 

information, skills, knowledge and 

advice they need to succeed 

http://www.bsk-cic.co.uk/ 

Kent County 

Trading Ltd 

 

  

üüüü 

 

A 

 Temporary employment agency 

and employment business.  Also,  

provider of bus services, facilities 

management services, and 

services to care homes 

Kent County 

Supplies Ltd 

  

üüüü 

 

A 

 To provide supply services to 

care homes in respect of medical 

& hygiene consumables 

https://www.kcswebshop.co.uk/ 

Kent County 

Facilities Ltd 

  

üüüü 

 

A 

 To provide facilities management 

services 

http://www.kcfacilities.co.uk/ 

Kent Top Temps 

Ltd 

  

üüüü 

 

 

A 

 

 Temporary employment agency 

and employment business 

http://www.kenttoptemps.co.uk/ 
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

5. The table below shows the key financial highlights from the Statutory Accounts 

attached: 

Company Name Financial 

Year 

 

Turnover / 

Income 

£k 

Profit/Surplus 

before Tax 

£k 

Retained 

Profit/Surplus 

£k 

Net 

Assets 

£k 

Association of Tourist 

Attractions in Kent Ltd 

2010/11 

Abbreviated 

Accounts 

N/A N/A N/A 11.6 

Groundwork Kent & 

Medway 

2010/11 1,634.9 N/A 42.7 217.7 

Aylesham & District 

Community Workshop 

Trust 

2010/11 205.4 N/A (43.6) 1,902.8 

The Individual Learning 

Company 

     

The North Kent 

Architecture Centre Ltd 

2010/11 438.7 7.1 6.3 135.7 

Visit Kent Ltd 2010/11 1,565.4 6.4 6.4 162.1 

Locate in Kent Ltd 2011/12 959.1 16.6 16.1 493.5 

Trading Standards 

South East Ltd 

2010/11 2,499.8 1.7 1.3 25.0 

East Kent Spatial 

Development Company 

2011/12 720.3 61.4 50.7 2,227.7 

Produced in Kent Ltd 2011/12 237.0 (7.8) (7.8) 19.0 

Business Support Kent 

Community Interest 

Company (see Note 1) 

2010/11 5,076.7 (224.6) (226.7) 379.3 

Kent County Trading 

Ltd 

2011/12 37,741.1 887.3 689.8 

 

2,010.3 

Kent County Supplies 

Ltd 

2011/12 657.4 346.3 257.8 (1.7) 

Kent County Facilities 

Ltd 

2011/12 3,373.9 253.0 213.3 557.9 

Kent Top Temps Ltd 2011/12 34,233.2 290.7 221.3 1,456.8 
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Note 1 - The pre-tax deficit of £224.6k in 2010/11 contrasts with a pre-tax surplus of 

£256.5k in 2009/10.  A three year contract to provide the Business Link service, funded 

by the South East England Development Agency, was completed successfully on 31 

March 2010.  The loss of the Business Link contract to a national service provider had a 

significant impact on the scale of the group, resulting directly in a reduction in turnover 

from £9,275.1k in 2009/10 to £5,076.7k in 2010/11.  The year to 31 March 2011 was very 

much one of transition requiring a substantial realignment of the organisation which gave 

rise to significant one-off costs that contributed to the reported deficit.  The 2010/11 

Statutory Report and Accounts (attached) state that the group has made good progress 

in reorganising its operations to address the challenges of this new environment, resulting 

in a reduction in headcount from 103 to 47, and has been successful in securing some 

new contracts to sustain its future business.   KCC does not hold any shares in Business 

Support Kent Community Interest Company, but it does contract with the company, and 

has representation on the Board by Barbara Cooper, Director of Economic Development 

at KCC. 

RECOMMENDATION 

6. Members are recommended to note the contents of this report for assurance, and to 

note the latest available Statutory Accounts (attached) for those companies in which 

KCC has an interest. 

 

 

Guy Record,  

BSS, Finance & Procurement 

September 2012 
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Company registration number: 03114198
Charity registration number: 1050794

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

BATCHELOR COOP chartered accountants

THE NEW BARN MILL LANE EASTRY SANDWICH KENT CT13 0JW
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Contents
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

Charity name Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Charity registration number 1050794

Company registration number 03114198

Principal office Ackholt Road
Aylesham
Kent
CT3 3AJ

Registered office Ackholt Road
Aylesham
Kent
CT3 3AJ

Trustees S Bennet

L M Ives

Cllr L Keen

L J Brazier

Rev R Fisk

D Jennings

W Field

L Jeavons

K Rogers

A Hockley

J Honnor

S Manion

M Townsend (Resigned 28 September 2010)

R Thompson (appointed 15 May 2011)

Secretary Mr D Garrity M.B.E., Company secretary

Solicitor Furley Page
52-54 High Street
Whitstable
Kent
CT5 1BG

Bankers Lloyds TSB Bank PLC
49 High Street
Canterbury
Kent
CT1 2SE
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

Accountant Batchelor Coop Ltd
The New Barn
Mill Lane
Eastry
Sandwich
CT13 0JW

Patron G Prosser
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Trustees' Report

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust had a successful year in 2010/2011 and again performed in
accordance with our charitable aims.

We have continued to assist in terms of helping other organisation within the village to regenerate Aylesham
and bring in modern facilities.

We have been working to assist the Aylesham & Snowdown Welfare Scheme and had a successful opening
of the £2.5 million Aylesham Welfare Leisure centre.

The centre has all of the modern facilities with a state of the art 3g synthetic pitch and a multi games area.

The changing rooms are appreciated by the local rugby and football teams with the referees having their
own rooms.

We have appointed a not for profit leisure company Freedom Leisure to run the centre and have created
seven jobs and we will address the healthy living agenda.

The centre also has a state of the art gymnasium and the response has been great with over 275 people
signed .

The social area is also up and running for the creative arts and there will be a joint Snowdown Brass Band
,Snowdown Male voice choir and fireworks display on the Christmas carol evening.

There are more women and children members than ever , years ago there was a check off system of
deduction from miners wages and the family was only members by virtue of the mans membership.

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust continues to work with HCA and East Kent Spatial
Development Company in their ambition in bringing up to 400 jobs to the area after the disappointing
decision not to proceed with the Snowdown Colliery development.

The partnership has built the 5 workshop units and they are ready for occupation.

We have funded an employment through the Coalfield Regeneration Trust, East Kent Spatial Development
Company and the Workshop Trust which will be delivered by Aylesham Neighbourhood Project.

The project objectives is to bring real paid work to the people of Aylesham and to actively assess the skills of
candidates and help them get skills and qualification for work.

The office accommodation, workshops and training in the project that will create up to 400 jobs.

Aylesham Community Conference Centre has performed according to our business plan and although in a
demanding sector we continue to be successful. Our conference administration officer monitors client
requirement and we continue to improve the service we give.

The recession is making the provision of services very challenging but we have made provision for this
eventuality in the preceding years.

The small business units are full and have an interesting group of business operating from them. They have
a White Mill veterinarian practice a hairdresser, employment agency, stonemason, machine repair company
and Marine software who service the shipping industry with health & safety and maintenance programmes.

Miners Way Business has no empty units and some of the business have ceased to operate and others are
struggling in the current economic climate.

We have 10 units occupied and the break even point is five units occupied. This trust activity is an important
contributor to our balance sheet and a job generator in the area but we are supporting the struggling
businesses.

The maintenance of the buildings is an ongoing investment and we continue to maintain and upgrade the
facilities overseen by the maintenance officer.

We continue to work with a Learn Direct company Want to Learn who are committed to delivering courses in
our computer room they attract a good number of local people to carry out computer training. Want to Learn
are very proactive and are providing very good learning opportunities for local people.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Trustees' Report

We continue to train our own staff and we have been encouraging staff to go on training courses Mr Keith
Garrity, Mrs Lisa Pope.

We are also serving the local organisations and we host Silver Song Club, NHS Blood service, a slimming
club, yoga, Zumba , A.A meeting, and allow each organisation in the village one free event in the hall per
year.

We have the Aylesham Minibus Club the 16 seater minibus can be hired at very reasonable rates to local
organisations which assist them greatly with their transport issues which are a major problem living in a rural
area.

We have entered into a partnership with Aylesham Carnival Committee to run the mini bus whish costs us
about £2,300/year to run.

We allowed the Carnival Committee to keep all hiring’s fees and they will fund the mini bus through the
hiring’s and grant applications, the Parish Council did not contribute this year but are committed to the
project for next year.

Aylesham Workshop Trust grants have been popular again this year and we have been funding football and
bowls team shirts with our sponsorship logos on them, and are also sponsoring Bettshanger Bowls club
entry into a competitive Kent bowling league. We are confident that this year we will spend all of our £10,000
grant allocation even in the recession.

There is still a need for office accommodation in the Aylesham area and if funds become available we may
be interested in filling this pent up demand.

It is my judgement that the next three years will be very difficult on the business and economic front but we
as a trust have capital reserves and a plan to see us through.

We have a unique opportunity with Homes & Community Agency’s Coalfield programme to equip the
Aylesham area with the business infrastructure to be ready for the next economic up turn.

The challenge is to up skill our people and train them for the jobs at the end of this recession. The crying
need is for a working population with a higher educational standard and higher skills to match to potential
employers needs.

The economic future is uncertain but it is my opinion that the trust is in a good position to for fill its charitable
aims and support Aylesham’s transition from a large village to a town.

We have had a very busy year and I would like to thank all of our trustees for their work and support in a
very challenging time, especially our chair Sam Bennett and our treasurer Lonnie Brazier.

I would like to record my thanks to our staff Lisa Pope, Keith Garrity, Lesley Sellwood and Kenny Devine,
they have worked hard for our reputation of excellent service at Aylesham & District Community Workshop
Trust and they are the people who enhance our reputation with our clients every day of the week.

The challenges ahead are great but we have the skills and determination to work with our partners to
regenerate Aylesham.

Small company provisions

This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies' regime under the Companies Act
2006.

Approved by the Board on 23 November 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

.........................................

Mr D Garrity M.B.E.
Secretary
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Independent Examiner's Report to the Trustees of

Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

I report on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011, which are set out on pages 6 to
16.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner

The trustees (who are also the directorsof the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for the preparation of the accounts. The trustees consider that an audit is not required for this year under
section 43(2) of the Charities Act 1993 (the 1993 Act) and that an independent examination is needed.

Having satisfied myself that the charity is not subject to audit under company law and is eligible for
independent examination, it is my responsibility to:

- examine the accounts under section 43 of the 1993 Act;

- follow the procedures laid down in the General Directions given by the Charity Commission under
section 43(7)(b) of the 1993 Act; and

- state whether particular matters have come to my attention.

Basis of independent examiner's report

My examination was carried out in accordance with the General Directions given by the Charity
Commission. An examination includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a
comparison of the accounts presented with those records. It also includes consideration of any unusual
items or disclosures in the accounts, and seeking explanations from you as trustees concerning any such
matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit and
consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a 'true and fair view' and the report is
limited to those matters set out in the statement below.

Independent examiner's statement

In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention:

(1) which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect the requirements:

- to keep accounting records in accordance with section 386 of the Companies Act 2006; and

- to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records, comply with the accounting
requirements of section 396 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the methods and
principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by
Charities

have not been met; or

(2) to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the
accounts to be reached.

.........................................
Mark A Batchelor
Batchelor Coop Ltd
Chartered Accountants

23 November 2011

The New Barn
Mill Lane
Eastry
Sandwich
CT13 0JW
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of Financial Activities (including Income and Expenditure Account) for
the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total
Funds 2011

Total
Funds 2010

Note £ £ £ £

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated
funds

Voluntary income 2 1,490 - 1,490 6,486

Activities for generating funds 3 59,118 - 59,118 57,269

Investment income 4 63 - 63 52

Incoming resources from charitable
activities 5 144,735 174 144,735 149,656

Total incoming resources 205,406 174 205,406 213,463

Resources expended

Charitable activities 6 188,993 26,673 215,492 224,659

Governance costs 9 33,481 - 33,481 39,343

Total resources expended 222,474 26,673 248,973 264,002

Net expenditure before transfers (17,068) (26,499) (43,567) (50,539)

Transfers

Gross transfers between funds 8,795 (8,795) - -

Net movements in funds (8,273) (35,294) (43,567) (50,539)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 398,475 1,547,850 1,946,325 1,996,864

Total funds carried forward 390,202 1,512,556 1,902,758 1,946,325

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

Registration number: 03114198

2011 2010

Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 13 1,443,626 1,493,043

Investments 14 612,000 629,000

2,055,626 2,122,043

Current assets

Debtors 15 42,194 40,555

Cash at bank and in hand 84,060 109,407

126,254 149,962

Creditors: Amounts falling due
within one year 16 (30,656) (67,958)

Net current assets 95,598 82,004

Total assets less current
liabilities 2,151,224 2,204,047

Creditors: Amounts falling due
after more than one year 17 (248,466) (257,722)

Net assets 1,902,758 1,946,325

The funds of the charity:

Restricted funds in surplus 1,512,556 1,547,850

Restricted funds in deficit

Farm - -

Total restricted funds 1,512,556 1,547,850

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 390,202 398,475

Total charity funds 1,902,758 1,946,325

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

......... continued

For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the charity was entitled to exemption from audit under section
477 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

The members have not required the charity to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in
accordance with section 476.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect
to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to
the small companies regime and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April
2008).

Approved by the Board on 23 November 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

.........................................

L Jeavons
Trustee

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2005)',
issued in March 2005, the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) and
the Companies Act 2006.

Fund accounting policy

Unrestricted income funds are general funds that are available for use at the trustees' discretion in
furtherance of the objectives of the charity.

Restricted funds are those donated for use in a particular area or for specific purposes, the use of
which is restricted to that area or purpose.

Further details of each fund are disclosed in note 21.

Incoming resources

Grants that provide core funding or are of a general nature are recognised where there is entitlement,
certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Investment income is recognised on a receivable basis.

Income from charitable activities includes income recognised as earned (as the related goods or
services are provided) under contract.

Resources expended

Liabilities are recognised as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to
the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to the category.

Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and
services for its beneficiaries. It includes both costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and
those costs of an indirect nature necessary to support them.

Grants payable are payments made to third parties in the furtherance of the charitable objectives.
Where the charity gives a grant with conditions for its payment being a specific level of service or
output to be provided, such grants are only recognised in the SoFA once the recipient of the grant has
provided the specific service or output.

Grants payable without performance conditions are only recognised in the accounts when a
commitment has been made and there are no conditions to be met relating to the grant which remain in
the control of the charity.

Provisions for grants are made when the intention to make a grant has been communicated to the
recipient but there is uncertainty about either the timing of the grant or the amount of grant payable.

Governance costs

Governance costs include costs of the preparation and examination of the statutory accounts, the costs
of trustee meetings and the cost of any legal advice to trustees on governance or constitutional
matters.

Support costs

Support costs include central functions and have been allocated to activity cost categories on a basis
consistent with the use of resources, for example, allocating property costs by floor areas, or per
capita, staff costs by the time spent and other costs by their usage.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Irrecoverable VAT

Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred.

Fixed assets

Individual fixed assets costing £50 or more are initially recorded at cost.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less any
estimated residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Plant and machinery 25% reducing balance
Fixtures and fittings 15% reducing balance
Freehold property Not depreciated
Motor vehicles 25% reducing balance
Leasehold improvements Straight line over 50 years
Investment asset Straight line over 40 years

Investments

Fixed asset investments are included at market value at the balance sheet date.

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds
and their market value at the start of the year, or their subsequent cost, and are charged or credited to
the statement of the financial activities in the period of disposal.

Unrealised gains and losses represent the movement in market values during the year and are credited
or charged to the statement of financial activities based on the market value at the year end.

Pensions

The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are charged in the
statement of financial activities as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

2 Voluntary income

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Restricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2011

£

Total Funds
2010

£

Donations and legacies

Appeals and donations 1,490 - 1,490 6,486

3 Activities for generating funds

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Restricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2011

£

Total Funds
2010

£

Income from "Miners Way"

Rental income 59,118 - 59,118 57,269

4 Investment income

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Restricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2011

£

Total Funds
2010

£

Interest on cash deposits 63 - 63 52

5 Incoming resources from charitable activities

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Restricted
Funds

£

Total
Funds

2011
£

Total
Funds

2010
£

Rental income 144,735 - 144,735 149,656
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

6 Details of charitable activities

Activities
undertaken

directly
£

Grant
funding of

activities
£

2011
£

2010
£

206,484 9,008 215,492 224,659

7 Support costs

Costs of
generating

funds
Total

£ £

Employment costs - -

Establishment costs 4,307 4,307

Telephone 2,185 2,185

Printing, posting and stationery 1,964 1,964

Sundry and other costs 15 15

Motor expenses 86 86

Accountancy fees 522 522

Auditors' remuneration 1,130 1,130

Legal and professional costs 5,172 5,172

Interest payable 18,100 18,100

33,481 33,481

8 Grantmaking

Grants to
institutions

£

9,008

9 Governance costs

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Restricted
Funds

£

Total
Funds

2011
£

Total
Funds

2010
£

Support costs allocated 33,481 - 33,481 39,343

10 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

No trustees received any remuneration during the year.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

11 Net expenditure

Net expenditure is stated after charging:

2011 2010

£ £ £ £

Auditors' remuneration - audit
services - 3,320

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 57,797 63,451

Loss/(profit) on sale of intangible
fixed assets 1,270 -

12 Taxation

No provision for taxation is included in the financial statements as the company is a charity entitled to
the exemption from tax afforded by Section 505, ICTA 1988.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

13 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold
interest in

land and
buildings

(including
heritage
assets)

£

Long
leasehold and

other
interests in

land and
buildings

£

Plant and
machinery

including
motor

vehicles
£

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment

£
Total

£

Cost

As at 1 April 2010 426,790 1,297,713 46,492 209,301 1,980,296

Disposals - - (15,824) (1,277) (17,101)

As at 31 March 2011 426,790 1,297,713 30,668 208,024 1,963,195

Depreciation

As at 1 April 2010 - 319,540 22,675 146,925 489,140

Eliminated on
disposals - - (9,148) (1,221) (10,369)

Charge for the year - 27,196 4,253 9,349 40,798

As at 31 March 2011 - 346,736 17,780 155,053 519,569

Net book value

As at 31 March 2011 426,790 950,977 12,888 52,971 1,443,626

As at 31 March 2010 426,790 978,173 23,817 62,376 1,491,156

14 Investments held as fixed assets

Investment
properties

£

Market value

As at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 680,000

Market value

As at 1 April 2010 51,000

Charge for the year 17,000

As at 31 March 2011 68,000

Net book value

As at 31 March 2011 612,000

As at 31 March 2010 629,000

All investment assets were held in the UK.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

15 Debtors

2011
£

2010
£

Trade debtors 41,989 38,879

Other debtors 205 1,424

Prepayments and accrued income - 252

42,194 40,555

16 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2011
£

2010
£

Trade creditors 8,984 54,172

Taxation and social security 8,969 998

Other creditors 9,256 8,690

Accruals and deferred income 3,447 4,098

30,656 67,958

17 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2011
£

2010
£

Other creditors 248,466 257,722

Included in the creditors are the following amounts due after more than 5 years:

2011
£

2010
£

After more than five years by instalments 204,290 216,498

18 Members' liability

The charity is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital.
Each of the members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £10 towards the assets of the
charity in the event of liquidation.

19 Pension scheme

Defined contribution pension scheme

The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the period
represents contributions payable by the charity to the scheme and amounted to £1,372 (2010 -
£1,512).

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

20 Related parties

Controlling entity

The charity is controlled by the trustees who are all directors of the company.

21 Analysis of funds

At 1 April
2010

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended Transfers

At 31
March 2011

£ £ £ £ £

General Funds

Unrestricted income fund 398,475 205,406 (222,474) 8,795 390,202

Restricted Funds

Land and buildings 706,349 - (6,663) - 699,686

Workshop 561,613 - (7,486) - 554,127

Verandah 238,155 - (6,616) - 231,539

Telecentre 10,229 - (1,355) - 8,874

Farm 8,621 174 - (8,795) -

Minibus 17,167 - (4,553) - 12,614

Windows 5,716 - - - 5,716

1,547,850 174 (26,673) (8,795) 1,512,556

1,946,325 205,406 (248,973) - 1,902,758

22 Net assets by fund

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds
2011

Total Funds
2010

£ £ £ £

Tangible assets 285,349 1,158,277 1,443,626 1,493,043

Investments - 612,000 612,000 629,000

Current assets 126,254 - 126,254 149,962

Creditors: Amounts falling due
within one year (21,400) (9,256) (30,656) (67,958)

Creditors: Amounts falling due
after more than one year - (248,466) (248,466) (257,722)

Net assets 390,203 1,512,555 1,902,758 1,946,325
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

Unrestricted
income fund

2011

Unrestricted
income fund

2010

£ £

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds

Voluntary income 1,490 500

Activities for generating funds 59,118 57,269

Investment income 63 52

Incoming resources from charitable activities 144,735 149,656

Total incoming resources 205,406 207,477

Resources expended

Charitable activities 188,993 175,729

Governance costs 33,481 39,343

Total resources expended 222,474 215,072

Net expenditure before transfers (17,068) (7,595)

Transfers

Gross transfers between funds 8,795 -

Net movements in funds (8,273) (7,595)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 398,475 406,070

Total funds carried forward 390,202 398,475

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Land and
buildings

2011

Land and
buildings

2010

£ £

Resources expended

Charitable activities 6,663 9,573

Total resources expended 6,663 9,573

Net movements in funds (6,663) (9,573)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 706,349 715,922

Total funds carried forward 699,686 706,349

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Workshop
2011

Workshop
2010

£ £

Resources expended
Charitable activities 7,486 22,710

Total resources expended 7,486 22,710

Net movements in funds (7,486) (22,710)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 561,613 584,323

Total funds carried forward 554,127 561,613

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Verandah
2011

Verandah
2010

£ £

Resources expended
Charitable activities 6,616 6,616

Total resources expended 6,616 6,616

Net movements in funds (6,616) (6,616)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 238,155 244,771

Total funds carried forward 231,539 238,155

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Telecentre
2011

Telecentre
2010

£ £

Resources expended
Charitable activities 1,355 1,586

Total resources expended 1,355 1,586

Net movements in funds (1,355) (1,586)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 10,229 11,815

Total funds carried forward 8,874 10,229

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Farm
2011

Farm
2010

£ £

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from charitable activities 174 -

Total incoming resources 174 -

Resources expended

Charitable activities - 2,568

Total resources expended - 2,568

Net expenditure before transfers 174 (2,568)

Transfers

Gross transfers between funds (8,795) -

Net movements in funds (8,621) (2,568)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 8,621 11,189

Total funds carried forward - 8,621

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Minibus
2011

Minibus
2010

£ £

Resources expended
Charitable activities 4,553 5,607

Total resources expended 4,553 5,607

Net movements in funds (4,553) (5,607)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 17,167 22,774

Total funds carried forward 12,614 17,167

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust

Statement of financial activities by fund Year Ended 31 March 2011

......... continued

Windows
2011

Windows
2010

£ £

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds

Voluntary income - 5,986

Total incoming resources - 5,986

Resources expended
Charitable activities - 270

Total resources expended - 270

Net movements in funds - 5,716

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 5,716 -

Total funds carried forward 5,716 5,716

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the company in the year under review was that of continuing to deliver design support, including

design advice on high profile projects throughout the region, training for key decision makers, including planning

authority members and officers and housing association staff, assisting with the selection and appointment of designers,

writing good practice guidance and working with schools - all to develop an understanding of the importance of good

design within the community. 

DIRECTORS

The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2010 to the date of this report. 

Ms C Delage

R Holdsworth

S Gaimster

B M Shaw

K D Burbidge

M D Bodkin

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows: 

J McCready - resigned 30 April 2010 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with

applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors

have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not

approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors

are required to: 

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company

will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities. 

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies

Act 2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought

to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish

that the company's auditors are aware of that information. 
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

AUDITORS

The auditors,  McCabe Ford Williams, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating

to small companies. 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

........................................................................

C Lamb - Secretary 

Date:   ............................................. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of North Kent Architecture Centre Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011

on pages six to eleven. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law

and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities). 

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those

matters we are required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's

members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page two, the directors are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our

responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and

International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices

Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors, including "APB Ethical Standard - Provisions Available for Small Entities

(Revised)", in the circumstances set out in note ten to the financial statements. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or

error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances

and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and

non-financial information in the financial statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial

statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its profit for the year then

ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable

to Smaller Entities; and 

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if, in our opinion: 

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from

branches not visited by us; or 

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

- the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime

and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Report of the Directors. 

Ian Ellis BSc FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of McCabe Ford Williams 

Registered Auditors

Chartered Accountants

Bank Chambers

1 Central Avenue

SITTINGBOURNE

Kent

ME10 4AE

Date: .............................................
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11 31.3.10

Notes £ £

TURNOVER 2 438,690 557,560

Administrative expenses 437,271 548,943

1,419 8,617

Other operating income 5,552 5,528

OPERATING PROFIT 3 6,971 14,145

Interest receivable and similar income 100 58

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

BEFORE TAXATION 7,071 14,203

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4 740 3,126

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 6,331 11,077

The notes form part of these financial statements
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

BALANCE SHEET

31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11 31.3.10

Notes £ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets 5 - 1,344

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors 6 46,425 51,381

Cash at bank and in hand 171,457 158,366

217,882 209,747

CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year 7 82,221 81,761

NET CURRENT ASSETS 135,661 127,986

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 135,661 129,330

RESERVES

Other reserves 9 41,785 41,785

Profit and loss account 9 93,876 87,545

135,661 129,330

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act

2006 relating to small companies and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008). 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on ............................................. and were signed on

its behalf by: 

........................................................................

R Holdsworth - Director 

The notes form part of these financial statements
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as management are confident that sufficient funds

will continue to be available to enable the company to operate for the foreseeable future.

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008). 

Turnover

Turnover represents grants received and also invoiced sales of service, excluding value added tax.

Grants are received from Kent County Council, Medway Council and CABE Regional Programme and are

accounted for on a receivable basis.

Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful

life.

Fixtures and fittings - 33% on cost 

Computer equipment - 33% on cost 

Fixed asset additions costing below £1,000 are written off to the income and expenditure account in the year in

which the expenditure is incurred.

Hire purchase and leasing commitments

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the

period of the lease. 

2. TURNOVER

The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the company. 

3. OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Depreciation - owned assets 1,344 1,285

Auditors remuneration 2,565 2,300

Directors' remuneration and other benefits etc - -

Directors receive no emoluments or any other benefits. 
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

4. TAXATION

Analysis of the tax charge

The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows: 

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Current tax:

UK corporation tax 740 2,404

Underprovision previous year - 722

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 740 3,126

Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The difference is

explained below: 

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 7,071 14,203

Profit on ordinary activities

multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax

in the UK of 21% (2010 - 21%) 1,485 2,983

Effects of:

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (192) (615)

Expenditure disallowed for tax purposes 473 36

Under/(Over)provision in previous year - 722

General provision written back (1,026) -

Current tax charge 740 3,126

Deferred tax has not been recognised in the accounts as its recoverability can not currently be assessed with

any certainty.
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

5. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures

and Computer

fittings equipment Totals

£ £ £

COST

At 1 April 2010 7,700 33,227 40,927

Disposals (4,409) (15,977) (20,386)

At 31 March 2011 3,291 17,250 20,541

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2010 7,700 31,883 39,583

Charge for year - 1,344 1,344

Eliminated on disposal (4,409) (15,977) (20,386)

At 31 March 2011 3,291 17,250 20,541

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2011 - - -

At 31 March 2010 - 1,344 1,344

6. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Trade debtors 37,025 3,604

Other debtors - 1,985

Prepayments & accrued income 9,400 45,792

46,425 51,381

7. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Trade creditors 8,193 648

Taxation 740 2,404

Other taxes and PAYE taxes 10,634 13,466

Accruals & Deferred Income 62,654 65,243

82,221 81,761
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

8. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The following operating lease payments are committed to be paid within one year: 

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £

Expiring:

Between one and five years 25,009 25,009

9. RESERVES

Profit

and loss Other

account reserves Totals

£ £ £

At 1 April 2010 87,545 41,785 129,330

Profit for the year 6,331 6,331

At 31 March 2011 93,876 41,785 135,661

10. APB ETHICAL STANDARD - PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR SMALL ENTITIES

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature we use our auditors to assist with the preparation

of the financial statements.

11. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

There is no ultimate controlling party. The board of trustees and the management team are responsible for the

strategic and operational decisions of the charity.

12. COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

The company is limited by guarantee. The guarantors for the company are:

Chatham Historic Dockyard Trust

Gravesham Borough Council

Kent County Council

Medway Council

University of Greenwich
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £ £ £

Turnover

Grant income 15,000 15,000

Project income 423,690 542,560

438,690 557,560

Other income

Rents received 5,552 5,528

Deposit account interest 100 58

5,652 5,586

444,342 563,146

Expenditure

Materials 110 1,199

Rent & rates 25,551 25,012

Light and heat - 1,189

Insurance 7,817 6,888

Wages 305,435 369,860

Hire of plant and machinery 442 231

Telephone 5,696 5,332

Post, printing and stationery 9,719 13,282

Advertising and promotions 1,632 1,621

Motor, travel and subsistence 10,400 14,415

IT software & support 3,233 2,475

Repairs and renewals (4,812) 423

Cleaning and laundry 2,447 2,475

Sundry expenses 2,616 1,824

Subscriptions 2,448 1,772

Disallowed VAT 4,051 1,113

Consultancy fees 49,638 83,200

Legal & professional fees 350 2,492

Auditors remuneration 2,565 2,300

Conferences 2,602 4,141

Catering 3,671 6,192

435,611 547,436

8,731 15,710

Finance costs

Bank charges 316 222

Carried forward 8,415 15,488

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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NORTH KENT ARCHITECTURE CENTRE LIMITED 

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

31.3.11 31.3.10

£ £ £ £

Brought forward 8,415 15,488

Depreciation

Computer equipment 1,344 1,285

NET PROFIT 7,071 14,203

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED  

COMPANY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

DIRECTORS: R A H Briggs  M Butler  
T K Carter   S Crawley 
D R Cross   V De Haan 
P J Deacon   P J Emmett 
P Exeter   N C Fitzpatrick 
K E Ford   I G Gilmore 
M Golledge   A Gregory 
K G Holyer   G J Jackson 
B E Johnson  J Kerman 
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2011.  

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 
The principal activities of the company in the year under review were those of providing consumer advice services via a call centre 
and providing training to trading standards professionals. The objective is to facilitate continuous improvement in the delivery of 
trading standards services throughout the Southeast of England and to promote a fair and safe trading environment, encouraging 
enterprise and enhancing consumer confidence. The company operates on the principal that all income shall be applied solely 
towards the promotion of the company objectives. 

DIRECTORS 
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2010 to the date of this report.  

R A H Briggs 
C P Denard 
K G Holyer 
B E Johnson 
S M F Murphy 
R J Sexton 
G D Watson 
R D Stone 
G R Macpherson 
M J Sanders 
T K Carter 
P J Deacon 
P J Emmett 
N C Fitzpatrick 
K E Ford 
Z Lys 
A L Poole 
C D Robinson 
S J Ruddy 
P J Thomas 
M J Thornton 
M Golledge 
P Exeter 
J S Woodhouse 
L V Corrie 
I K Treacher 
S S Edmunds 
R I Webb 
M Butler 
G Jackson 
J Player 

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:  

C G Bainbridge - resigned 31 March 2011  
N Snape - resigned 31 March 2011  
K F Eaglestone - resigned 31 March 2011  
S P Richardson - resigned 21 May 2010  
N Badley - resigned 21 May 2010  
N N Strick - resigned 7 December 2010  
L Mooney - appointed 25 January 2011  
J Kerman - appointed 25 January 2011  

K Law, V De Haan, J C Peerless-Mountford, G M Steadman, A Gregory, R N Strawson, M V Rolfe, S Crawley, D R Cross and I G 
Gilmore were appointed directors after 31 March 2011 but prior to the date of this report. 

L V Corrie, G D Watson, C P Denard, S S Edmunds and R D Stone ceased to be directors after 31 March 2011 but prior to the date 
of this report. 
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

RESERVES POLICY 
The directors regularly review the company's reserves and allocation of funding to safeguard the company's service commitment in 
the event of delays, contractual risks or reduction in statutory income due to changes in government policy in the trading standards 
sector. 

Due to inevitable fluctuation in funding from year to year, the directors consider it prudent that there should be sufficient reserves to 
ensure that the company's core activities can continue. At the year end, included within other creditors in accordance with the 
accounting policy detailed in note 1, are reserves of £394,229 (2010 - £388,969). 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations.  

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law the directors have 
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the 
company for that period.  In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:  

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue 

in business.  

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS 
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of 
which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a 
director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are 
aware of that information.  

AUDITORS 
Under section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, CG LEE LTD will be deemed to have been reappointed as auditors 28 days after 
these financial statements were sent to members, or 28 days after the latest date prescribed for filing the accounts with the registrar, 
whichever is earlier. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small 
companies.  

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

............................................................................... 
R J Sexton - Director  

Date:   .............................................  
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED 

We have audited the financial statements of Trading Standards South East Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011 on pages six 
to eleven. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Financial Reporting 
Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller 
Entities).  

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state 
to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.  

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors  
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page four, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors, including 
"APB Ethical Standard - Provisions Available for Small Entities (Revised)", in the circumstances set out in note nine to the financial 
statements.  

Scope of the audit of the financial statements  
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have been consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the financial statements 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements.  If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.  

Opinion on financial statements  
In our opinion the financial statements:  
- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its profit for the year then ended;  
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller 

Entities; and  
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006  
In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.  

Matters on which we are required to report by exception  
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our 
opinion:  
- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not 

visited by us; or  
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or  
- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or  
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or  
- the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime and take 

advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Report of the Directors.  

Mr J L Hyde (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
for and on behalf of CG LEE LTD  
Chartered Certified Accountants 
Registered Auditors 
Ingram House 
Meridian Way 
Norwich 
Norfolk 
NR7 0TA 

Date: .............................................
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

2011  2010 
Notes £ £ 

TURNOVER 2,499,796 2,078,882 

Administrative expenses 2,499,796 2,078,882 

   
OPERATING PROFIT 2 - - 

Interest receivable and similar income  1,649 1,980 

   
1,649 1,980 

Interest payable and similar charges  - 16 

   
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
BEFORE TAXATION 1,649 1,964 

Tax on profit on ordinary activities  3 346 416 

   
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR   1,303 1,548 
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

BALANCE SHEET 
31 MARCH 2011 

2011  2010 
Notes £ £ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors 5 552,658 346,780 
Cash at bank 760,151 930,934 

   
1,312,809 1,277,714 

CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  6 1,287,809 1,254,017 

   
NET CURRENT ASSETS 25,000 23,697 

   
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  25,000 23,697 

   

RESERVES 
Profit and loss account 7 25,000 23,697 

   
25,000 23,697 

   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 
relating to small companies and with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).  

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on   ............................................. and were signed on its behalf 
by:  

............................................................................... 
R J Sexton - Director  
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TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Accounting convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).  

Turnover 
Turnover represents the net value of services provided, excluding value added tax.  Any unmatched surplus revenue at the 
end of the year is carried forward within creditors. 

Tangible fixed assets 
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful life.  

 Plant and machinery etc -  33% on cost  

Deferred tax 
The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing 
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.  In accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standard 19, provision is made for deferred tax in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not 
reversed by the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is more likely than not that the 
deferred tax asset will be recovered.  Deferred tax is measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax balances are not discounted. 

Grants receivable 
Revenue grants received are matched against the expenditure to which they relate. 

Grants received in respect of capital expenditure are credited to the deferred income account and are released to the profit 
and loss account by equal instalments over the expected useful lives of the assets. 

Any unmatched surplus revenue grants at the end of the period are carried forward in creditors. 

2. OPERATING PROFIT 

 The operating profit is stated after charging: 

2011  2010 
£ £ 

 Directors' remuneration and other benefits etc - - 

   

3. TAXATION 

Analysis of the tax charge 
The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:  

2011  2010 
£ £ 

 Current tax: 
 UK corporation tax 346 416 

   
 Tax on profit on ordinary activities 346 416 

   

A review during 2008 by HM Revenue & Customs on the tax status of the company established that the operating activities 
of the company are non-commercial and therefore not subject to corporation tax. However, it was concluded that current 
and future investment income is subject to corporation tax and on this basis a provision for the tax liability on this income 
has been made within the financial statements. 
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Page 8 continued... 

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

4. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
Plant and 
machinery 

etc 
£ 

COST 
 At 1 April 2010 
 and 31 March 2011 1,963 

  
DEPRECIATION 

 At 1 April 2010 
 and 31 March 2011 1,963 

  
NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2011 - 

  

5. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
2011 2010 

£ £ 
 Trade debtors 92,881 114,068 
 Other debtors 459,777 232,712 

   
552,658 346,780 

   

6. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
2011 2010 

£ £ 
 Trade creditors 340,107 110,973 
 Taxation and social security 346 44,102 
 Other creditors 947,356 1,098,942 

   
1,287,809 1,254,017 

   

7. RESERVES 
Profit 

and loss 
account 

£ 

 At 1 April 2010 23,697 
 Profit for the year  1,303 

  
 At 31 March 2011 25,000 

  

8. APB ETHICAL STANDARD - PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR SMALL ENTITIES

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature we use our auditors to prepare and submit returns to the tax 
authorities and assist with the preparation of the financial statements.  
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Page 9 

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 05259365)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

9. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

During the year the following transactions took place with the members of the company, under normal commercial terms: 

Sales Debtors 
2011 2010 2011 2010 

£ £ £ £ 

Bracknell Forest Borough Council  6,631 8,684 378 3,400 
Brighton & Hove City Council  2,129 10,142 582 2,196 
Buckinghamshire County Council  13,834 23,276 - 12,142 
East Sussex County Council  12,683 14,758 - 588 
Hampshire County Council  9,246 25,796 - 7,327 
Isle of Wight Council  2,864 6,781 - - 
Kent County Council  57,232 40,711 9,212 1,175 
Medway Council  10,363 8,663 - - 
Milton Keynes Council  16,236 7,975 - 1,812 
Oxfordshire County Council  9,893 21,445 - 10,349 
Portsmouth City Council  - 7,692 - - 
Reading Borough Council  2,630 6,525 - 3,705 
Slough Borough Council  4,498 10,081 - 3,482 
Southampton City Council  26,429 7,760 24,000 4,293 
Surrey County Council  66,508 30,290 15,078 14,991 
West Berkshire District Council  13,810 10,139 219 7,932 
West Sussex County Council  14,349 18,727 2,040 - 
Royal Borough of Windsor & 
Maidenhead 10,526 7,542 - 3,596 
Wokingham District Council  438 9,263 - - 

Purchases Creditors 
2011 2010 2011 2010 

£ £ £ £ 

Bracknell Forest Borough Council  - - - - 
Brighton & Hove City Council  1,070 - 620 - 
Buckinghamshire County Council  980 1,175 980 - 
East Sussex County Council  - 17,340 - 5,445 
Hampshire County Council  99,316 51,797 16,879 30,558 
Isle of Wight Council  495 127 495 - 
Kent County Council  1,801,372 1,151,876 175,874 17,658 
Medway Council  8,223 5,042 - - 
Milton Keynes Council  4,223 14,086 1,850 11,526 
Oxfordshire County Council  16,108 11,895 4,968 - 
Portsmouth City Council  11,737 6,995 7,876 - 
Reading Borough Council  11,636 1,050 497 - 
Slough Borough Council  7,350 6,633 - - 
Southampton City Council  24,449 16,946 - 11,908 
Surrey County Council  176,419 208,509 2,120 13,257 
West Berkshire District Council  55 1,721 - - 
West Sussex County Council  8,560 6,684 - 6,065 
Royal Borough of Windsor & 
Maidenhead 2,738 2,111 587 1,570 
Wokingham District Council  - - - - 

10. LIMITED LIABILITY AND CONTROLLING INTEREST 

The company is limited by guarantee and does not have any share capital.  The liability of the members is limited to 
contributions of £1.  There is no ultimate controlling party. 

Page 149



£ £ £ £

Turnover 2,499,796  2,078,882  

Other income

Deposit account interest 1,483         1,975         

Bond interest 166            5                

1,649         1,980         

2,501,445  2,080,862  

Expenditure

Direct operating activities 734,420     377,742     

Staffing Costs 141,409     180,587     

Consumer Direct call costs 1,393,229  1,208,120  

Marketing 2,296         20,261       

Refreshments and catering 5,701         2,528         

Training expenses 8,284         9,428         

Staff expenses 7,533         10,337       

Company running costs 23,932       24,607       

Sundry expenses 13,112       1,547         

Other Consumer Direct expenses 169,250     243,305     

Bank charges 631            419            

2,499,796  2,078,882  

1,649         1,980         

Finance costs

Other interest payable -                16              

NET PROFIT 1,649        1,964        

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

CD management income 30,639       39,350       

LA contributions 135,000     109,952     

Project management income 2,988         -                

Central Government Funding 10,401       21,500       

Transfer - Tobacco - admin support 4,250         6,000         

Transfer - Credit Fitness Checks 450            1,000         

Transfer - GOWERS IP admin support -                2,000         

Transfer - FSA admin support 1,000         750            

E-Crime coordination income 12,000       -                

BWC coordination income 5,000         -                

Ports/LBRO admin support 11,250       -                

Funding for organised training -                4,575         

Sundry income 100,670     -                

Transfer surplus to reserves (117,860) (11,390)

195,788     173,737     

Expenditure

Salary charges 116,763     125,696     

Staff expenses 7,163         7,544         

Telephone 2,000         1,266         

Postage and stationery -                400            

Catering 2,473         2,528         

Audit 2,750         3,150         

Insurance 798            1,101         

Accounting and professional fees 3,808         5,169         

Staff training 784            2,157         

Premises costs 12,000       12,000       

Office equip and computer costs -                720            

Miscellaneous expenses 5,201         1,112         

KCC CD contributions -                4,000         

Legal fees 15              20              

Website hosting costs 3,052         -                

Organised training expenses 350            6,256         

Members & Senior Managers events -                200            

Transfer to Intel 38,000       -                

195,157     173,319     

631            419            

Finance costs

Bank charges 631            419            

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

COMPANY RUNNING COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

Cost per call income - OFT 1,393,553  1,247,471  

Marketing and events income (10,207) 10,286       

Quality Bonus 150,926     132,478     

Low payment income -                 55,908       

Other income 20,343       23,782       

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves 7,964         (22,453)

1,562,579  1,447,472  

Expenditure

Cost per call costs 1,393,229  1,208,120  

Marketing and events costs 101            47              

Trader tracking costs -                 (1)

Quality Bonus 150,926     132,478     

Low volume payment -                 55,908       

Trsfr to company running costs 18,000       39,350       

Other expenditure 324            11,570       

1,562,579  1,447,472  

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

CONSUMER DIRECT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

SELT project funding 4,165         13,913       

Internal transfer from Tobacco -                10,000       

Internal transfer from Gowers -                21,504       

Gowers reserve for database -                20,000       

E-Crime project funding 4,000         -                

LA contributions 38,000       -                

Ports/LBRO contributions 2,475         -                

Transfer surplus to reserves (21,832) (15,410)

26,808       50,007       

Expenditure
Salary charges 18,546      46,864      

Staff expenses 370            2,167         

Telephone 392            346            

Staff training -                196            

Contractor costs 7,500         -                

Office equipment and computer costs -                435            

26,808       50,007       

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

REGIONAL INTELLIGENCE CAPABILITY

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

LA contributions -                -                

Transfer deficit to reserves -                54,023       

-                54,023       

Expenditure

Consultancy -                -                

Stakeholder events -                -                

Training -                820            

Salary costs & expenses -                8,028         

IT/database costs -                431            

Promotional materials / publicity -                -                

Officer Training -                -                

LA Strategic Assesssments & Mapping -                -                

Market Operators Exercise -                1,510         

Work with Customs & Excise -                21,504       

Administration support -                2,000         

Consultants expenses -                (270)          

Transfer to Regional Intel Capability -                20,000       

Catering -                -                

-                54,023       

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

GOWERS IP

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

Income from LAs 7,750         24,550       

Income for sale of goods 17,425       -                

BWC Scheme fee 168            -                

Surrey admin 5,300         -                

Web development 25,000       -                

Transfer (surplus)/deficit to reserves (28,175) 4,662         

27,468       29,211       

Expenditure

TSI Conference costs 509            4,048         

Promotional activities/website hosting 16,622       19,737       

Staff expenses 2,195         426            

Consultants -                5,000         

Website 1,660         -                

Staff costs 6,100         -                

Card processing charges 382            -                

27,468       29,211       

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

BWC

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

Food bid 90,067       -                

Feed bid 22,053       -                

FSA Grant -                119,322     

Transfer deficit to reserves 28,556       29,129       

140,676     148,452     

Expenditure

LA sampling costs 139,676     93,607       

Administration support 1,000         54,844       

140,676     148,452     

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

FSA

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

OFT income 12,921       13,754       

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves 1,324         (4,515)

14,245       9,239         

Expenditure

LA visit costs 13,795       8,239         

Administration support 450            1,000         

14,245       9,239         

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

CREDIT FITNESS CHECKS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Page 17Page 157



£ £ £ £

Turnover

DoH Grant 169,114     201,819     

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves 58,919       (129,240)

228,033     72,579       

Expenditure

LATP costs 110,172     22,370       

Promotional activities -                477            

Project co-ordination / intel collation -                8,000         

Consultants costs 9,851         9,200         

Consultants expenses -                343            

Innovation 781            730            

Trade newsletter activity -                6,445         

Detection & Disruption 9,027         -                

Enforcement checks 191            -                

Contingency 2,350         -                

Vending machine activity -                5,945         

Pictorial warning activity -                1,650         

Counterfeit warning activity -                840            

Online project activity -                7,403         

Capacity -                338            

Administration support 94,250       8,000         

Miscellaneous 1,246         -                

Engagement, regional events 165            839            

228,033     72,579       

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

TOBACCO CONTROL

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

TSI subscriptions 60,949       68,341       

RFU income -                1,000         

Lexis Nexis subscriptions 84,994       -                

IHS subscriptions 4,785         -                

BIS Market Surveillance 25,000       -                

Transfer deficit to reserves 3,470         10,865       

179,198     80,206       

Expenditure

Miscellaneous 3,612         435            

Project costs -                11,430       

TSI Products 63,579       68,341       

Lexis Nexis subscriptions 84,994       -                

IHS subscriptions 4,785         -                

BIS Market Surveillance 22,228       -                

179,198     80,206       

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

MISCELLANEOUS & ADHOC PROJECTS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

Transfer deficit to reserves 50,338       6,400         

50,338       6,400         

Expenditure

Transfer to company running costs 2,493         -                

Committed to LAs but not reimbursed (4,250) -                

Reimbursement of LA money 52,095       6,400         

50,338       6,400         

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

HOLDING

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

BIS income 22,750       25,000       

LBRO income 22,750       7,500         

Transfer surplus to reserves (689) (24,945)

44,811       7,555         

Expenditure

Sampling 7,918         -                

Coordination/administration 11,250       -                

Transfer to Intel 2,475         -                

Miscellaneous -                164            

Sampling LA Ports work 23,168       7,391         

44,811       7,555         

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

PORTS & ERTS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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£ £ £ £

Turnover

Regional coordination/TP 3,500         10,000       

Intel -                4,000         

Website development 3,628         851            

LA TP & Surveillance 10,000       -                

Transfer deficit/(surplus) to reserves 12,724       (14,851)

29,852       -                

Expenditure

Regional coordination/TP 10,000       -                

Intel collation 5,500         -                

Equipment 1,123         -                

Room hire/catering 3,228         -                

LA TP & Surveillance 10,000       -                

29,852       -                

NET PROFIT -               -               

2011 2010

TRADING STANDARDS SOUTH EAST LIMITED

E-CRIME

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Principal activities

The company's principal activity is to promote the economic development and regeneration, with a view to
promoting the economic and environmental wellbeing, of an area within the districts of Thanet District Council,
Dover District Council, Shepway District Council and Canterbury City Council including, without limitation:

(a) primarily to undertake or procure the provision of infrastructure works and wider regeneration  activities;
and

(b) subject thereto to promote, provide and procure the provision of economic development activities and to
promote, provide and procure the provision of other appropriate support activities, including without limitation,
advice and training, in each case within or for the benefit of the Target Area.
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3/9/2012   11:34 DRAFT
East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Directors

The directors who served during the year were:

D Tucker (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)
R Bayford (TDC) (appointed 1 August 2011 & resigned 5 January 2012)
P Cusdin (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)
C Moore (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011) 
K Harvey (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)
J Sadler (SEEDA) (resigned 7 September 2011)
P Wookey (LiK) (appointed 7 September 2011)
K Lynes (KCC) (appointed 17 January 2012 & resigned 10 May 2012)
R Pascoe (SDC) (resigned 5 January 2012)
A Clifton-Holt (SDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)
C Smith (DDC) (resigned 1 August 2011)
J Gilbey (CCC) (appointed 27 April 2011)
I Johnston (TDC) (appointed 5 January 2012)
A Durowoju (HCA) (resigned 8 April 2011)
C Barron (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)
P Watkins (DDC) (appointed 1 August 2011)
D Everitt (UoK) (appointed 7 September 2011)

Provision of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are

unaware, and

that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any

information needed by the company's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish

that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

Under section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, Reeves & Co LLP will be deemed to have been reappointed
as auditor(s) 28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date
prescribed for filing the accounts with the registrar, whichever is earlier.

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 12 September 2012 and signed on its behalf.

J Gilbey (CCC)
Director
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East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2012

            
        2012         2011

Note         £         £

Turnover 1 720,310 683,658

Cost of sales (381,212) (328,166)

Gross profit 339,098 355,492

Administrative expenses (283,473) (320,932)

Operating profit 2 55,625 34,560

Interest receivable and similar income 5,809 8,421

Interest payable and similar charges - (802)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 61,434 42,179

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4 (10,788) 52,603

Profit for the financial year 13  50,646  94,782

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 March 2012

        2012         2011
        £         £

Profit for the financial year 50,646 94,782

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties 400,000 282,750

Unrealised movement on valuation of other debtors 568,542 329,338

Associated movement in deferred tax arising from the
movement on valuation of other debtors (110,000) 190,000

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year  909,188  896,870

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 04410176

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 5 2,786 144

Investment property 6 2,200,000 1,800,000

2,202,786 1,800,144

Current assets

Debtors 7 5,506,179 6,679,725

Cash at bank 2,709,369 2,592,203

8,215,548 9,271,928

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 8 (603,952) (255,960)

Net current assets 7,611,596 9,015,968

Total assets less current liabilities 9,814,382 10,816,112

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 9 (7,586,668) (9,497,586)

Net assets  2,227,714  1,318,526

  
Capital and reserves

Revaluation reserve 13 2,200,000 1,800,000

Other reserves 13 (427,056) (885,598)

Profit and loss account 13 454,770 404,124

 2,227,714  1,318,526

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its
behalf on 12 September 2012.

J Gilbey (CCC)
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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East Kent Spatial Development Company

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of the land and buildings and in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (FRSSE).

1.2 Cash flow

The financial statements do not include a Cash flow statement because the company, as a small
reporting entity, is exempt from the requirement to prepare such a statement under the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

1.3 Turnover

Turnover comprises income received in respect of the company's principal activities. It
incorporates two main elements; firstly income from investment properties, and secondly grants
released (see note 1.7).

Income from investment properties is credited to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the rental period.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation.  Depreciation is provided at
rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Office Equipment - 33% straight line

Assets under the course of construction are included at cost less impairment. No depreciation is
provided until assets are brought into use. Assets under the course of construction will be
reclassified on completion to another tangible fixed asset heading or investment properties as
appropriate.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

1.5 Investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the financial statements at market values based on the latest
valuation.  A valuation was carried out by the Directors as at 31 March 2012, which was informed
by previous independent professional valuations undertaken by Cluttons LLP as at 15 February
2010 and 31 March 2011.

In accordance with the FRSSE, depreciation is not provided on investment properties that are held
as leaseholds having more than 20 years unexpired. This is not in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, which requires all tangible assets to be depreciated.  This departure from the
requirements of the Act is, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the financial statements to
give a true and fair view and comply with applicable accounting standards which require
investment properties to be included in the financial statements at market value.  Had the
provisions of the Act been followed, prior to grants being released as described in note 1.7,
revenue profits would have been reduced, the revaluation surplus would have been increased and
therefore net assets would have been unchanged.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on a
straight line basis over the period until the date the rent is expected to be adjusted to the prevailing
market rate.

1.7 Grants

The company's activities are funded primarily by grant aid.

Grants by member organisations are given to finance the general administration of the company.
Such grants are recognised in the profit and loss account of the period in which they become
receivable.

Other grants receivable of a revenue nature are credited to the profit and loss account in the period
to which the expenditure, towards which they are intended to contribute, are incurred.

Grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as grants received in advance and are released
to the profit and loss account in the period during which any corresponding depreciation or
impairment of the costs is made.

Grants received in respect of investment properties have been deducted from the cost of those
assets. This is not in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, which requires assets to be shown
at their purchase price or production cost and hence grants and contributions to be presented as
deferred income. This departure from the requirements of the Act is, in the opinion of the Directors,
necessary to give a true and fair view as these assets do not have determinable finite lives and
therefore no basis exists on which to recognise grants and contributions as income. The effect of
this departure is that the cost of the investment property is £7,471,934 lower than it would
otherwise have been (2011: £6,264,677), but the valuation of the property is unchanged.

Grants receivable to finance loans made by the company are transferred from designated grants in
advance to unrestricted grants in advance in the period in which repayment of the other debtor to
which they relate is made. 
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Other debtors

Other debtors comprise loans made to a utility provider to finance new infrastructure works in East
Kent.  The loans (utility loans) are index linked to RPI and are repayable as and when third parties
pay the utility provider to connect to the new utility infrastructure.  The amount of utility loan
repayable is proportionate to the capacity connected as a percentage of the total capacity of the
new utility network.

In order to make these utility loans the company has received grants (see 1.7 above).  At the point
of repayment, the grant made to finance the utility loan is transferred from designated grants in
advance to unrestricted grants in advance .

Although the company’s classification is small and it is not therefore required to implement the
provisions of FRS26 “Financial instruments: measurement”, the company has adopted FRS26 as
best practice on accounting for these utility loans.  Accordingly the utility loans have been treated
as an "available for sale financial asset" and are measured at fair value.  Fair value is taken as the
directors' best estimate of the discounted future income stream arising from the repayment of the
utility loans.

Any movement in the value of this estimate, other than from the draw down or repayment, is taken
to other reserves.

There is no certainty over the timing and percentage connection to the network that will be
achieved.  As such there is significant uncertainty over the carrying value of utility loans.  The
directors do not envisage 100% connection to the network and therefore they have made a
provision to reduce the value of utility loans to their estimated fair value. The accumulated
provision is shown as an other reserve, as disclosed in note 13.

1.9 Going concern

There is no certainty over the timing and future value of the other debtor loan repayments and
consequently the carrying value of the loans which are valued at the directors' best estimate of fair
value.  

The recognition of the unrealised deficit relating to the revaluation of other debtors does not impact
on the company’s financial facilities.  The company has started to receive repayments and expects
a positive cash flow in future years to arise from the other debtor balances.  The company made a
profit on ordinary activities after taxation of £50,646 (2011: £94,782).  The company has
£2,709,369 (2011: £2,592,203) included in cash at the bank.  As a consequence the directors
believe that the company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the
current uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and
accounts.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax
computation.

Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences arising from the revaluation of fixed assets in the
financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at the
time the timing differences are expected to reverse.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are discounted.

2. Operating profit

The operating profit is stated after charging:

        2012         2011
        £         £

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the company 608 72

Auditors' remuneration 5,050 4,900

During the year, no director received any emoluments (2011 - £NIL).

3. Exceptional items

The operating profit is also stated after charging / (crediting):

        2012         2011
        £         £

Impairment of tangible fixed assets (664,914) (241,276)
Release of grants towards tangible fixed assets 664,914 241,276

 -  -

Assets under the course of construction have been impaired to the higher of their net realisable value
and their value in use. Corresponding releases have been made from grants received in advance. Both
the impairments and the grant releases have been charged to administration expenses within the profit
and loss account resulting in nil overall effect to the profit and loss account.
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4. Taxation

        2012         2011
        £         £

Analysis of tax charge/(credit) in the year

UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 10,750 7,089
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 38 (59,692)

Tax on profit on ordinary activities  10,788  (52,603)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 20% (2011 - 20%). The differences are explained below:

        2012         2011
        £         £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax  61,434  42,179

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2011 - 20%) 12,287 8,436

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwill
amortisation and impairment 168 337

Capital allowances for year in excess of depreciation (543) -
Utilisation of tax losses (1,162) (1,684)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods 38 (59,692)

Current tax charge/(credit) for the year (see note above)  10,788  (52,603)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The company has tax losses carried forward of £415,000 (2011: £990,000).  These have resulted in the
recognition of a deferred tax asset.  The tax losses will be utilised to reduce future taxable profits.
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5. Tangible fixed assets

Furniture,
fittings and
equipment

Assets under
the course of
construction Total

£ £ £

Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2011 2,371 241,276 243,647
Additions 3,250 1,064,914 1,068,164
Transfers to investment

properties - (1,207,258) (1,207,258)

At 31 March 2012 5,621 98,932 104,553

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 2,227 241,276 243,503
Charge for the year 608 - 608
Impairment (see note 3) - 664,914 664,914
Transfers to investment

properties - (807,258) (807,258)

At 31 March 2012 2,835 98,932 101,767

Net book value

At 31 March 2012  2,786  -  2,786

At 31 March 2011  144  -  144

6. Investment property

Long term
Leasehold

investment
property

£

Cost

At 1 April 2011 1,800,000
Grants received (400,000)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation 400,000
Transfers from Assets under the course of

construction 400,000

At 31 March 2012  2,200,000

Comprising

Revaluation surplus - 2010 1,517,250

Revaluation surplus - 2011 282,750
Revaluation surplus - 2012 400,000

At 31 March 2012 2,200,000
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6. Investment property (continued)

The 2012 valuations were made by the Directors, on an open market value for existing use basis.  The
valuation was informed by previous independent professional valuations undertaken by Cluttons LLP as
at 15 February 2010 and 31 March 2011.

The company's investment property is secured by way of a legal mortgage against the grants made by
SEEDA (see note 10).

7. Debtors

        2012         2011
        £         £

Due after more than one year

Other debtors 5,096,189 6,396,215
Deferred tax asset (see note 11) 62,500 150,000

Due within one year

Trade debtors 10,065 14,010
Grants receivable
Prepayments and accrued income

151,153
168,772

3,248
76,252

Deferred tax asset  (see note 11) 17,500 40,000

 5,506,179  6,679,725

Other debtors include loans made to a utility service provider to finance the installation of new network
infrastructure.  The valuation principles of these loans and related uncertainties are described in note
1.8.

8. Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year

        2012         2011
        £         £

Grants received in advance (see note 10) 168,267 54,073
Trade creditors 132,188 18,250
Corporation tax 10,750 7,089
Other creditors 292,747 176,548

 603,952  255,960

Included within other creditors are amounts totalling £42,276 (£42,276 in grants received in advance)
owed to SEEDA secured by way of a legal charge over the leasehold property. 
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9. Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

        2012         2011
        £         £

Grants received in advance (see note 10)  7,586,668  9,497,586

10. Grants received in advance

        2012         2011
        £         £

Unrestricted grants 1,983,424 1,737,724
Designated grants - other debtors 5,715,837 7,717,512
Designated grants - fixed assets 55,674 96,423

 7,754,935  9,551,659

Unrestricted grants
These relate to those grants received by the company that the company is able to use for whatever
purpose it deems appropriate.  The balance includes HCA funding of £300,430 (2011: £300,430) and
converted other debtor grants of £1,682,994 (2011: £1,437,294).

Designated grants - other debtors
These relate to grants received in order to finance the other debtor loans made by the company.  They
are converted to unrestricted grants once the repayment of the other debtor falls due.  The balance
includes Single Regeneration Budget funding administered through TDC of £1,412,540 (2011:
£1,945,533), funding from the HCA of £2,229,568 (2011: £3,070,849), and funding from the European
Regional Development Fund of £1,961,136 (2011: £2,701,130).

The balance also includes funding from the HCA in respect of recoverable deposits totalling £112,593
(2011: £NIL).

Designated grants - fixed assets
These relate to grants received in order to finance fixed assets of the company.  The balance comprises
SEEDA funding of £nil (2011: £42,276) and funding from the HCA of £55,674 (2011: £54,147).

11. Deferred tax asset

        2012         2011
        £         £

At beginning of year 190,000 -
(Charge for)/released during year (110,000) 190,000

At end of year  80,000  190,000

The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:

        2012         2011
        £         £

Tax losses carried forward  80,000  190,000
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12. Company status

The company is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital.
Each of the members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the
company in the event of liquidation.

13. Reserves

Revaluation
reserve

Other
reserves

Profit and
loss account

£ £ £

At 1 April 2011 1,800,000 (885,598) 404,124
Profit for the year 50,646
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold property 400,000
Movement on other reserves 458,542

At 31 March 2012  2,200,000  (427,056)  454,770

Other reserves represent the provision made to reduce utility loans to the directors' best estimate of fair
value. See accounting policy 1.8.

14. Contingent liabilities

The company has received grants contingent on meeting certain performance criteria.  The Directors
are confident that the Company will meet these performance criteria.

15. Capital commitments

At 31 March 2012 the company had capital commitments as follows:
        2012         2011

        £         £

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements  813,332  873,891

In respect of the commitment, the company had an agreement with the HCA that capital grant funding
would be made available to the company in respect of qualifying capital expenditure.

16. Related party transactions

During the year the company was refunded premises expenses totalling £955 (2011 charged: £8,679)
from TDC, a member of the company.  Included within prepayments is an amount of £Nil (2011: £426)
relating to monies paid to TDC in advance.

During the year the company received grants from the HCA totalling £1,300,610 (2011: £244,524).  The
unutilised balance remaining on grants received are shown in note 10.

During the year the company paid rates to CCC of £131,305 (2011: £117,918).  At the year end the
company was owed £Nil (2011: £2,159).
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17. Controlling party

There is no controlling party for the company.
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PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company continued to be that of increasing public awareness of produce which

has been produced in Kent.

Directors

The following directors have held office since 1 April 2011:

J Barnes

P  Hannan

W Opie

Dr M Solomon (Resigned 20 July 2011)

S Clarke

A Wickham

M Regan (Appointed 21 April 2011)

T Piper (Resigned 20 July 2011)

R Phillips (Appointed 20 July 2011)

Professor P Gregory (Appointed 11 August 2011)

A Church (Appointed 26 January 2012)

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the

directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company

law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In

preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the

company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They

are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Statement of disclosure to auditors

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are

unaware. Additionally, the directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as

directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the

company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within

Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.

On behalf of the board

..............................

W Opie

Director

.........................
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We have audited the financial statements of Produced in Kent Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 set

out on pages 5 to 9. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable

law and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of

the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To

the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the

company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 1 - 2, the directors are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair

view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with

applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to

comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient

to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether

caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to

the company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the

financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors' Report

to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its loss for the

year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice applicable to Smaller Entities; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small

companies regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors'

report.

John McIntyre  (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Wilkins Kennedy FKC .........................

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Stourside Place

Station Road

Ashford

Kent
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2012 2011

Notes £ £

Turnover 236,969  269,505 

Cost of sales (45,963) (57,672)

Gross profit 191,006  211,833 

Administrative expenses (198,793) (203,547)

Operating (loss)/profit 2 (7,787) 8,286 

Other interest receivable and similar 

income 3 25  6 

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities 

before taxation (7,762) 8,292 

Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities 4 -  (669)

(Loss)/profit for the year 9 (7,762) 7,623 
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2012 2011

Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 5 315  1,066 

Current assets

Debtors 6 51,695  51,999 

Cash at bank and in hand 77,840  41,640 

129,535  93,639 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 

one year 7 (110,871) (67,964)

Net current assets 18,664  25,675 

Total assets less current liabilities 18,979  26,741 

Reserves

Profit and loss account 9 18,979  26,705 

Members' funds 18,979  26,705 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies

subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the Financial

Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on .........................

..............................

W Opie

Director

Company Registration No. 05505567
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1 Accounting policies

1.1 Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is

appropriate because there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a going concern.

1.2 Compliance with accounting standards

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting

Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), which have been applied

consistently (except as otherwise stated).

1.3 Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and services net of VAT and trade discounts.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to

write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

Fixtures, fittings & equipment 33.3% Straight Line

2 Operating (loss)/profit 2012 2011

£ £

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible assets 316  1,234 

Auditors' remuneration 2,015  3,500 

3 Investment income 2012 2011

£ £

Bank interest 25  6 

25  6 

4 Taxation 2012 2011

£ £

Domestic current year tax

U.K. corporation tax -  669 

Total current tax -  669 
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5 Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures,

fittings &

equipment

£

Cost

At 1 April 2011 36,283 

Disposals (16,439)

At 31 March 2012 19,844 

Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 35,217 

On disposals (16,004)

Charge for the year 316 

At 31 March 2012 19,529 

Net book value

At 31 March 2012 315 

At 31 March 2011 1,066 

6 Debtors 2012 2011

£ £

Trade debtors 44,997  51,999 

Other debtors 6,698  - 

51,695  51,999 

7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2012 2011

£ £

Trade creditors 87,086  44,719 

Taxation and social security -  6,648 

Other creditors 23,785  16,597 

110,871  67,964 
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8 Company status

The company is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. Every member of the

company undertakes to contribute in a winding up a sum not exceeding £1 whilst they are a member, or

within one year after ceasing to be a member, towards debts and liabilities contracted before ceasing to

be a member.

9 Statement of movements on profit and loss account

Profit and

loss

account

£

Balance at 1 April 2011 26,741 

Loss for the year (7,762)

Balance at 31 March 2012 18,979 

10 Related party relationships and transactions

During the year, income of £122,104 (2011:£150,000) was receivable from Kent County Council in

respect of operational costs. Staff costs of £144,457 (2011: £151,843) were paid to that organisation of

which £71,333 remained payable at 31 March 2012. As at 31 March 2012, £42,345 (2011: £50,364) was

due from Kent County Council. Kent County Council is a member of the company.

Income receivable from Hadlow College for the year was £40,000 (2011: £50,000). Staff costs of £12,066

were paid to Hadlow College during the year. As at 31 March 2012, £2,700 (2011: £nil) was due to

Hadlow College. The premises occupied by the company during the year to 31 March 2012 were rented

from Hadlow College. Rent and service charges of £16,717 were paid to Hadlow College during the year.

Hadlow College is a member of the company.
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2012 2011

£ £ £ £

Turnover

Receivable from Kent County Council 122,104  150,000 

Receivable from Hadlow College 40,000  50,000 

Membership income 29,666  27,131 

LEADER income -  7,999 

Awards, festivals and events income 41,457  31,554 

Miscellaneous income 3,107  2,821 

Marketing income 635  - 

236,969  269,505 

Cost of sales

Kent Food and Drink Festival 11,216  16,533 

Taste of Kent Awards 12,441  12,908 

Newsletter 4,142  5,643 

Members Marketing 530  22 

LEADER Expenditure -  9,207 

Kent Show 8,129  7,700 

Young Chef Award 5,226  - 

Kent's Finest 3,705  5,659 

Create a Fruit & Veg Masterpiece 574  - 

(45,963) (57,672)

Gross profit 191,006  211,833 

Administrative expenses (198,793) (203,547)

Operating (loss)/profit (7,787) 8,286 

Other interest receivable and similar income

Bank interest received 25  6 

(Loss)/profit before taxation (7,762) 8,292 
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PRODUCED IN KENT LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011

£ £

Administrative expenses

Wages and salaries (excl. N.I.) 153,107  151,865 

Staff training 194  1,116 

Rent 16,717  13,577 

Insurance 751  578 

Cleaning 156  156 

Repairs and maintenance 217  - 

Printing, postage and stationery 2,794  3,679 

PR and advertising 11,022  16,353 

Telephone 2,169  2,014 

Computer running costs 2,790  3,163 

Travel expenses 4,100  3,846 

Entertaining -  333 

Legal and professional fees 1,496  990 

Audit fees 2,015  3,500 

Bank charges 54  59 

Bad and doubtful debts 14  - 

Sundry expenses 312  888 

Subscriptions 134  196 

Depreciation on fixtures, fittings and equipment 316  1,234 

Losses on tangible fixed assets scrapped 435  - 

198,793  203,547 
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THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page 15

KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2009 2010 2011 2012 

25.7% 

21.2% 

13.9% 

18.4% 

4 Year Gross Profit Margins 

 -   
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 1.0  

 1.5  
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0
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Annual Trading Comparison 

Turnover Gross Profit Profit before tax and Directors' remuneration 
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KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Cost of Sales 
82% 

Administration 
Expenses 

11% 

Profit before tax and 
Directors' 

remuneration 
7% 

Apportionment of Turnover - 2012 

Cost of Sales 
86% 

Administration 
Expenses 

8% 

Profit before tax and 
Directors' 

remuneration 
6% 

Apportionment of Turnover - 2011 

Page 283



THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page 17

KENT COUNTY FACILITIES LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

68% 

22% 

9% 1%

Facilities Management 

Waste management 

Marriages (venue hire) 

Transport (repairs centre) 

81% 

12% 

6% 1% 

Facilities Management 

Waste management 

Marriages (venue hire) 

Transport (repairs centre) 
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THIS PAGE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page 21

KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
For the year ended 31 March 2012
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KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
For the year ended 31 March 2012
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KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Cost of Sales 
93% 

Administration 
Expenses 

6% 
Profit before tax 

1% 

Apportionment of Turnover - 2012 

Cost of Sales 
91% 

Administration 
Expenses 

7% 

Profit before tax 
2% 

Apportionment of Turnover - 2011 
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Sales 7,180,031  14,389,154  24,475,068  30,415,454    34,233,188    

Trade debtors 1,498,678  2,793,841    3,532,578    4,186,135     5,628,018      

Debtor days 76             71               53               50                 60                  

Purchases 6,149,802  12,259,568  22,170,715  27,790,868    31,752,905    

Trade creditors 397,698     1,793,725    1,475,402    1,997,356     3,333,390      

Creditor days 24             53               24               26                 38                  

Cash Cycle 53             17               28               24                 22                 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Debtor days comparison

Kent County Council

Sales 7,167,850  13,108,735  22,209,122  27,207,610    31,737,250    

Trade debtors 1,505,598  2,622,008    3,393,594    4,055,524     5,405,192      

Debtor days 77             73               56               54                 62                  

External

Sales 12,181      1,280,419    2,265,946    3,207,844     2,495,938      

Trade debtors (6,920)       171,833      138,984      130,611        222,826         

Debtor days (207)          49               22               15                 33                  

Creditor days comparison

Kent County Council

Purchases 1,693,196  2,871,840    3,093,972    2,618,304     3,000,289      

Trade creditors (incl accruals) 315,629     1,398,432    1,194,852    1,130,869     2,047,950      

Creditor days 68             178             141             158               249                

External

Purchases 4,456,606  9,387,728    19,076,743  25,172,564    28,752,616    

Trade creditors 82,069      395,293      280,550      866,487        1,285,440      

Creditor days 7               15               5                 13                 16                  
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KENT TOP TEMPS LIMITED

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATIONS 
For the year ended 31 March 2012
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From:  Bryan Sweetland, Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and 
Waste 

  Mike Austerberry, Corporate Director, Environment and Enterprise 
  Ian McPherson, Managing Director, Commercial Services 
    
To:  Governance & Audit Committee, Trading Activities Sub-Group - 28 

September 2012 

Subject: Re-alignment of Commercial Services company structure following 
external review of its activities 

Classification: UNRESTRICTED  

 

 
Summary:  Following an independent review by BDO and Eversheds, and 
consideration by the Governing Board for Commercial Services, a number of 
changes are taking place in the management, operations and company structure 
of Commercial Services. 
 
Recommendations: 
i) The Governance & Audit Trading Activities Sub-Group is asked to note the 
contents of the paper which was considered by the Policy and Resources 
Committee on the 27th of September to change and improve the management, 
governance and operations of Commercial Services. 
ii) The Sub-Group is further asked to note that the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Highways and Waste, the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, 
Performance and Health Reform and the Corporate Director, Environment, 
Highways and Waste propose to take formal decisions in relation to the formation 
of new companies; the transfer of existing KCC employees to such companies; 
and the entering into of all necessary leasehold and other agreements to give 
effect to these arrangements. 
iii) All subject to the terms of the KCC Constitution and the Articles of 
Association of the Company. 
iv)   As requested by the Sub-Group, a copy of the review of Commercial 
Services, and a progress update report, are attached, and the Sub-Group is 
asked to note these documents. 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Commercial Services (CS) is a non-budget funded division of the County 
Council, which funds itself from the income generated by its own activities. It is 
largely, and increasingly, focused on trading outside Kent, and made a net return 
to KCC central funds of £7m in May this year.  

 

 

Agenda Item 8
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1.2 The County Council’s policy document Bold Steps for Kent set out the need 
for new approaches to meet the financial challenges facing local government. In 
this context the Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Waste and 
Corporate Director Environment, Highways & Waste last year commissioned an 
external appraisal of the management, operations, governance and future 
business potential of Commercial Services. 

1.3 This independent review recognised the value that Commercial Services 
added to the County Council and made a number of recommendations concerning 
changes and improvements to governance arrangements and clarification of the 
legal and governance relationship between KCC and Commercial Services. It has 
also provided valuable advice on areas of current and future business with the 
greatest potential profitability and sustainability, in order to underpin and 
strengthen future income returns to KCC. 

1.4 The County Council meeting in December last year approved a proposal to 
establish a Board of Cabinet Members and senior officers to manage Commercial 
Services, and to ensure a proper separation between ‘decider’ and ‘provider’ 
which had the potential to become blurred under the existing arrangements. The 
Board has met a number of times and worked through the recommendations of 
the independent report. A copy of the report is attached as Appendix 1 to this 
paper and the status report is at Appendix 2. 

1.5 The objective has been twofold. Firstly to make Commercial Services a 
leaner, more efficient business, better equipped to compete in challenging 
conditions. Secondly, to ensure that it operates properly at “arms length” from 
KCC with an appropriate company structure. It is proposed to simplify its current 
complex operating model of five companies to two specific company structures as 
set out below.   

1.6 These company changes will pre-emptively address the risk of any 
challenge under current and forthcoming public sector trading regulations which 
the government has indicated it may introduce to ensure local authorities do not 
use their public status to gain commercial advantage over the private sector. They 
will also ensure the total transparency of future business operations and the profit 
and loss of Commercial Services. 

2. Proposals 

2.1 The transformation programme is reconfiguring the current 26 disparate 
business units into five client-facing divisions. These new business divisions will 
act under the auspices of the two new legal entities, rather than under the current 
five limited company structure.  

2.2 The new business divisions will cover the areas of Education, Energy, 
Care, Employment and Direct Services with the sole purpose of returning an 
income dividend to the Council at no cost. 

2.3 The proposed changes to the company structure, and the entering into of 
various leasehold and other agreements, require various formal Cabinet Member 

Page 314



and officer decisions. The proposal is to simplify the current operating model from 
managing under five limited companies to two specific company structures. One 
will be a “Teckal” compliant company, which will trade exclusively with the County 
Council, and the other a “Section 95” company, which will enable CS to trade with 
the wider public and private sectors under the auspices of Section 95 of the Local 
Government Act.  

2.4 A more detailed note on these two types of company is attached as 
Appendix 3 to this paper.  

2.5 “Driving Economic Prosperity” is a key theme of Bold Steps for Kent. These 
proposals will enable KCC to be confident of, and to demonstrate, the existence of 
a level playing field with the private sector, and that it is operating on the same 
principles as its private sector competitors to deliver maximum benefit to its 
shareholder, Kent County Council, and the people of Kent.   

2.6 The review has confirmed the direction of travel for local authority trading, 
which will encourage a greater use of company vehicles than is common at 
present. It is considered likely that trading without using a company is probably 
only possible under government regulations in the short to medium term.  The 
recommendations in this paper address this advice, which it is proposed be 
implemented now, subject to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and 
Waste, the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health 
Reform and the Corporate Director, Environment, Highways & Waste taking the 
necessary formal decisions. Such companies will remain totally under the direct 
control of KCC. 

2.7 All KCC staff currently employed by CS will transfer to Commercial 
Services Kent Ltd (CSK Ltd - the ‘Teckal’ company) on their existing terms with no 
degradation to either working practice or pension. New joiners, including future 
appointments to the Executive Team, will move to different, more-private-sector 
orientated employment terms. 

2.8 Private sector trading will be focused more clearly on the Section 95 (non 
Teckal) company, to be named Commercial Services Trading Ltd, and the 
premises from which this arm operates must allow such commercial activity to be 
undertaken. 

2.9 To achieve this Commercial Services will change the name and the Articles 
of Association of the existing wholly-owned company Kent County Supplies Ltd to 
form the Teckal company, and will change the name of the existing wholly-owned 
company Kent County Facilities Ltd to form the Section 95 company. The 
remaining three companies will be dissolved as soon as is practicable. The new 
company names are subject to approval by Companies House.  Simultaneously a 
relocation of headquarters functions to different premises will allow CS to operate 
more efficiently and effectively. 
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3. Financial Implications 

3.1 This will be a cost neutral action.  As a “Teckal” company, CSK Ltd will 
provide the manpower and expertise to deliver services to KCC, providing a 
managed service to KCC to enable it to trade to meet the needs of its general 
interest. As such, CSK Ltd is not designed to generate a profit (all profit being 
made by KCC).  Furthermore this will allow the regularisation of the property 
relationship between KCC and CS. 

4. Staffing Implications 

4.1 A full staff consultation will be undertaken on the TUPE transfer of all 
existing KCC staff employed by CS to the limited company. TUPE regulations 
ensure that the existing employment terms, and pension provision, of staff 
transferring to a new provider are protected and there will therefore be no adverse 
impact on transferees. CSK Ltd will obtain admitted body status to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme in order to provide for the transferred-in pensions. 

5. Equalities Impact Assessment 

5.1 Initial screening reveals no further action is required.  A report on the 
assessment is at Appendix 4.   

6. Legal Implications 

6.1 The specialist Articles of Association for the new “Teckal” company have 
been reviewed by the Director of Governance and Law and will be refined to fully 
meet KCC requirements. 

7. Conclusion 

7.1 The establishment of the two new limited companies will meet the aims of 
“Bold Steps for Kent”, protect KCC from the impact of anticipated legislation and 
will enable Commercial Services in future to operate more effectively, efficiently 
and transparently creating a more viable and sustainable business platform. 

 

Background Documents 

Appendix 1:  Report by BDO/Eversheds on Commercial Services 
Appendix 2:  Transformation programme recommendations status report 
Appendix 3:  Briefing note – Teckal vs Section 95 companies 
Appendix 4:  Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Ian McPherson 
Managing Director, Commercial Services 
Gibson Drive, West Malling 
Tel: 5352 (01622 605352) 
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APPENDIX  2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES  

SERIAL ANALYSIS RECOMMENDATIONS CURRENT SITUATION 

1 STRUCTURE: 

The structure of Kent 

Commercial Services is 

unnecessarily complex and 

not fit for purpose. 

 

Formally constitute a stand alone business as an Arms 

Length Organisation and under the parent body form 

two discrete Limited Companies one Teckal compliant 

the other in open competition. 

 

This change has been prepared and is the subject of a 

paper to the Policy and Resources Committee prior to 

a formal Cabinet Member decision. 

2 REPORTING LINES: 

CS must have clear and 

distinct reporting lines. 

 

CS should be realigned to report to the Deputy 

Managing Director to whom it should be responsible for 

meeting KCC targets.   

 

Since this report was written the senior organisational 

structure has changed and the Governing Board 

agreed the Managing Director of CS should reprt to 

Mike Austerberry. 

3 GOVERNANCE: 

CS’s current Governance 

arrangements are part of the 

overall Governance 

arrangements of KCC.   

CS to have a clearly separate 

and distinguishable 

Governance arrangement that 

mirrors good commercial 

practice. 

 

  

CS should be realigned to report through  the 

appropriate Portfolio holder advised by a Governing 

Board.   

 

 

The full County Council in December 2012 approved 

the establishment of a Governing Board of Cabinet 

Members and Senior Officers to oversee Commercial 

Services.  The Board is in place and had met a number 

of times to review and advise on current and future 

strategic direction of CS.  
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APPENDIX  2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES  

SERIAL ANALYSIS RECOMMENDATIONS CURRENT SITUATION 

4 THE EXECUTIVE:  

The Executive of CS needs to 

be appropriately structured to 

enable it to drive the 

organisation forward and 

react to the Direction of an 

established governing board 

 

An appropriately robust Executive should be 

established. 

This executive should be formed and in place by no later 

than April 2012.  The final organisational structure, to 

sustain the organisation, should form part of the 

independent review of the trading arms, informed by 

the size and construct of the final organisation following 

the transition.  This executive should manage the 

transformation from CS current position to the new 

redesigned organisational structure. 

 

A new executive has been put in place and the new 

Managing Director  recruited following appointment 

by the panel of Personnel Committee. 

5 RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER 

PUBLIC SECTOR BODIES:  

 

The relationship with CBC, Pro 

5 and other public sector 

trading bodies & commercial 

operations should be aligned 

to ensure that the roles of KCC 

and CS are separated. 

 

 

The newly appointed  Head of Procurement (HOP) to 

manage the relationship on behalf of KCC which must be 

separate from the affiliation with CS. 

 

 

This action has been completed and the roles of KCC 

and CS are separate. 

6 EU AND REGULATORY 

COMPLIANCE:  

 

CS must ensure ongoing 

compliance with regulations 

both internal and external (EC 

and as defined in English law) 

 

 

The  relationship and responsibility  should be between 

the MD of CS and the HOP and that this ensures all CS 

commercial operations going forward are carried out in 

accordance with relevant and future anticipated 

regulations. 

 

 

This recommendation has been implemented. 
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APPENDIX  2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES  

SERIAL ANALYSIS RECOMMENDATIONS CURRENT SITUATION 

7 SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS: 

 

The current SLA’s need to be 

fit for purpose and properly 

describe the relationships 

between Directorates and CS 

 

That the Council fully adopts the role of Intelligent 

Customer and appropriate, balanced and agreed SLAs 

are drafted, agreed and implemented.   A Programme of 

regular review (annual) is established under the auspices 

of KCC Head of Procurement. 

 

This recommendation is an ongoing one and is being 

actioned jointly by the MD of CS and the Head Of 

Procurement for KCC. 

8 BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS: 

 

Currently all sales to KCC are 

subject to a collective 

profitability rebate to the 

Council.  This situation leads 

to suspicion and, in some 

cases, open hostility towards 

CS. 

 

Rebates to Directorates are applied based upon sales.  

Overall rebates to the Authority are adjusted 

accordingly and Directorate budgets aligned. A 

simplified method of accounting should be adopted. 

 

 

 

A number of rebate issues have been addressed and 

those that remain will be managed in the most 

simplified manner. 

9 Financial Relationship 

between CS and KCC:   

Different accounting systems 

clearly separate the finances 

of CS and KCC, however 

greater clarity is needed in 

some areas. 

 

 

 

Focus effort on clarifying the blurred lines between Kent 

CC and CS this will become clear with the establishment 

of an arms length organization and should address the 

issues around  premises arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Financial relationships are now clear and a clear 

business plan process for a commercial concern has 

been adopted and is subject to external review. 
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APPENDIX  2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES  

SERIAL ANALYSIS RECOMMENDATIONS CURRENT SITUATION 

10 Risk:  

Good practice would require a 

stand alone risk policy which is 

relevant and applicable to a 

commercial arm. 

 

 

CS to draft an appropriate risk policy which should be 

communicated to all staff. 

 

 

A risk policy is being drafted and will be in place by the 

end of the FY. 

11 Audit:  

The Audit process is dis-

jointed and takes no account 

of the commercial activity 

undertaken by CS 

 

 

 

 

CS is in the process of recruiting an appropriately 

qualified Audit team of 2 to be responsible for the 

ongoing Audit function.  The auditors, once in post, must 

be responsible for the Audit and risk functions described 

later in the detail of this report and they should be 

accountable from a technical compliance perspective to 

the Head of Audit and Risk of KCC. 

 

 

A new internal Head of Audit is in post and 

relationships with the KCC Head of Internal Audit have 

been established and terms of reference agreed. 

12 LEGAL: 

At present the arrangements 

are not sufficiently 

transparent to demonstrate 

the commerciality of the 

arrangements between the 

Council and the corporate 

trading entities.   

 

Any entities that are in place should be properly 

defined, constituted  and able to act. 

 

 

 

 

 

This is being addressed by the formation of the 

structure recommended to the Policy and Resources 

Committee, prior to formal Cabinet Member decision. 
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APPENDIX  2 - PROGRESS REPORT - BDO/EVERSHEDS STRATEGIC REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES  

SERIAL ANALYSIS RECOMMENDATIONS CURRENT SITUATION 

13 DETAILED REVIEW OF 

COMMERCIAL SERVICES: 

A root and branch review of 

Commercial Services should 

be undertaken to include all of  

its operating arms 

 

The current 26 business units are not properly aligned, 

some are not fit for purpose and some run in conflict 

from the requirements of the parent organization (KCC). 

This root and branch review using the ROAD© process 

and should report back with a detailed report which will 

inform the future structure to be implemented by the 

revised Management Executive by no later than Apr 

2013.   

 

The reviews have been under taken on each area of 

business and the recommendations of each of these 

reviews is being considered by the Board and the 

advice forthcoming is being implemented by the 

newly appointed Executive. 
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APPENDIX 3 

The "Teckal" Principle  

It is a well-established principle of EU procurement law that the open advertising and 

tendering rules for public contracts do not apply where a public body obtains services from 

"in-house" sources.  

Basic law is that any public body in the EU wishing to obtain services from the private sector 

has to comply with public procurement rules, which require open and non-discriminatory 

advertising, tendering, and contract award.  As a generally-accepted rule, a public body does 

not have to comply with public procurement rules where it is only utilising its own internal 

resources to satisfy its requirements. 

Furthermore if a public body wishes to obtain services from another public body this is 

provided for under what is known as the “Teckal” ruling, where, for the for the first time the 

European Court of Justice held that a public body could bypass the EU procurement rules 

and directly enter into a contract with a service provider so long as: 

• the public body controls the service provider in question as if it was that 

public body's own department; and  

• the service provider in question carries out the essential part of its activities 

with the contracting authority which controls that entity.  

The Teckal exemption allows contracting authorities a greater scope of cooperation 

amongst themselves without having to rely on a much narrower, existing exemption which 

applies only where services were provided by a contracting authority based on certain 

exclusive rights held by that contracting authority. 

The question of ownership is not alone decisive in determining whether the requisite level 

of control is exercised over the proposed service provider by a contracting authority: 

• any private sector part-ownership (no matter how minor the stake is) of the 

proposed service provider is likely to defeat the application of the Teckal exemption;  

• the Teckal exemption could still apply even where multiple contracting 

authorities share the control over the proposed service provider; and  

• the controlling contracting authority must possess "a power of decisive 

influence over both strategic objectives and significant decisions" over the proposed 

service provider for the Teckal exemption to apply (i.e., the more independently the 

entity in question is able to act, the less likely it is for the Teckal exemption to apply).  
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Section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003 

Section  95 of the Local Government Act 2003 provides specifically for Local Authorities to 

take part in trading activities with other public and private sector bodies, and to do “for a 

commercial purpose anything which they are authorised to do for the purposes of carrying 

on any of their ordinary functions”. 

The act makes further provision that the commercial trading can only be undertaken via a 

company regulated by both the Companies Acts and Part V of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989.  

This provision is to ensure that: 

• to make it a level playing field, as most competitors will usually be 

companies;  

• for tax reasons, as local authorities would otherwise have a tax advantage 

over the competition;  

• to ensure compliance with EU Competition Rules - if there is a requirement 

for a company it is easier to keep it all separate and transparent; and: 

• to comply with state aid rules. 
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APPENDIX 4 
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL  

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

Initial Screening 
 

 
 
Directorate: Commercial Services 
 
Name of Service 
Commercial Services  
 
Type  
Proposed transfer (TUPE) of staff to Commercial Services Kent Ltd 
 
Responsible Owner/ Senior Officer 
David Jackson, Planning Director   
 
Completed by: Robert Palmer (Head of HR) 
                           
Date of Initial Screening 
6 September 2012 
 

Version Author Date Comment 
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Screening Grid 
 
 

Assessment of 
potential impact 
HIGH/MEDIUM/LOW/ 
NONE/UNKNOWN 

Characteristic Could this policy, 
procedure, project or 
service affect this 
group differently from 
others in Kent? 
YES/NO 

Could this policy, 
procedure, project or 
service promote equal 
opportunities for this 
group? 
YES/NO 

 
Positive 

 
Negative 

Provide details: 
a) Is internal action required? If yes, why? 
b) Is further assessment required? If yes, why? 
c) Explain how good practice can promote equal 
opportunities   

 
Age 

No No None None 

 
Disability 

No No None None 

 
Gender  

No No None None 

 
Gender identity 

No No None None 

 
Race 

No No None None 

 
Religion or belief 

No  No None None 

 
Sexual orientation 

No No None None 

 
Pregnancy and 
maternity 

No No None None 

No internal action is required and no further 
assessment is required. 
 
It is not envisaged that there will be any impact as a 
result of the transfer of staff to the new private 
companies. 
 
 A full EqiA is not required at this time. 
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Part 1: INITIAL SCREENING  
 
 
Context 
 
A review of KCC Commercial Services concluded that the commercial 
operations of KCC that are operated by Commercial Services needed to be 
more ‘arms length’ to KCC.  The review recommended the creation of two 
new limited companies that would trade as Commercial Services and by 
which the staff who work for Commercial Services would be employed. 
 
 
Aims and Objectives 
 
Proposed creation of two new limited companies that are arms length to (but 
wholly owned by) Kent County Council.  These new companies would employ 
all of the staff within Commercial Services.  The staff who transfer would be 
protected by the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) 
Regulations 2006 “TUPE”. 
 
 
Beneficiaries 
 
KCC is the direct beneficiary as Commercial Services will be compliant in its 
trading activity with a clear line of separation from KCC. 
 
 
Consultation and data 
 
Informal consultation with staff and unions commenced in August 2012 and 
will continue until the point of transfer. 
 
Managers are in continual dialogue with their staff, linking in with CS HR as 
necessary for guidance and support. 
 
 
Potential Impact 
 
Initial screening notes that service users will not be affected by this TUPE 
transfer. 
 
At this stage it is considered that the transfer of staff to the private companies 
will not have an impact on any of the protected characteristics. 
 
No information has arisen from early engagement with staff to suggest that 
any other protected group will be disproportionately impacted. 
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JUDGEMENT 
 
Option 1 – Screening Sufficient                      YES 
Following this initial screening our judgement is that no further action is 
required. 
 
Justification:  
There is sufficient information at this time to indicate that no further action is 
required. 
 
 
Option 2 – Internal Action Required              YES/NO 
 
 
Option 3 – Full Impact Assessment               YES/NO 
Only go to full impact assessment if an adverse impact has been identified 
that will need to undertake further analysis, consultation and action 
 
 
Equality and Diversity Team Comments  
 
Sign Off 
 
I have noted the content of the equality impact assessment and agree the 
actions to mitigate the adverse impact(s) that have been identified. 
 
Senior Officer  
 
Signed:      Name: David Jackson 
 
Job Title: Planning Director,             Date: 11/9/2012 
  Commercial Services 
 
 
DMT Member 
 

Signed:      Name: Ian McPherson 
 
Job Title: Managing Director,             Date: 11/9/2012 
  Commercial Services 
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c
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v
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e
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p
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c
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 f
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 C
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c
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p
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v
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 p
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b
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b
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v
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c
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v
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e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 m

a
k
e
 

u
p
 1

8
%

 o
f 

th
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 d
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c
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c
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b
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 c
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 p
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b
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p
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c
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b
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c
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 c
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c
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c
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 l
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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c
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 c
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c
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 c
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c
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c
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b
e
rs

h
ip

 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

n
o
n
 

e
x
e
c
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b
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p
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b
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b
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b
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 C
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c
ia

l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
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b
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c
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c
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 c
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 b
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b
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b
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c
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d
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ra
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c
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p
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p
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p
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 c
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 b
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n
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 c
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a
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b
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R
e
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o
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e
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d
a
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n
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c
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r
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a
te

 
a
 
s
ta

n
d
 
a
lo

n
e
,

fo
rm
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tu
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 d
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c
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p
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p
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s
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e
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o
v
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R
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S
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o
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b
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g
n
e
d
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e
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b
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c
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c
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b
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c
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v
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c
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 r
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c
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 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 C

S
.

4
.

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
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c
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 b
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 c
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b
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c
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b
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b
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c
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c
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 c
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 c
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c
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c
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p
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d
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b
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 b
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 b
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b
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p
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c
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p
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p
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b
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c
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